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& Associates, P.C.

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council
City of Lawton, Oklahoma

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of the City of Lawton, Oklahoma (the "City"), as of and for the year ended
June 30, 2010, which coflectively comprise the City's basic financial statements as listed in the table of
contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of the City's management. Our responsibility is
to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We did not audit the financial
statements of the Lawton Metropolitan Area Airport Authority, the Lawton Arts and Humanities Council,
the McMahon Auditorium Authority, and the Museum of the Great Plains Trust Authority, which represent
95 percent, 236 percent, and 84 percent, respectively, of the assets, net assets, and program revenues of
the discretely presented component units. We also did not audit the Pension Trust Fund. The financial
statements for the above listed discretely presented component units and the Pension Trust Fund were
audited by other auditors whose reports thereon have been furnished to us, and our opinions, insofar as
they relate to the amounts included for discretely presented component units and the Pension Trust Fund
are based on the reports of the other auditors.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptrolier General of the United States. Those standards require that we pian and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
materiai misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles
used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our audit and the reports of the other auditors provide a
reasonable basis for our opinions.

in our opinion, based on our audit and the reports of the other auditors, the financial statements referred
to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental
activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City, as of June 30, 2010, and the respective
changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated July 7, 2011,
on our consideration of the City's internai control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other
matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal contral over financial
reporting and compliance and the resuits of that testing, and not to provide an copinion on the internal
control over financial reporting or on compliancé. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing the results of
our audit.

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's
discussion and analysis, budgetary comparison information, and the retirement benefit funding
information, as listed in the table of contents, be presented to supplement the basic financial statements.
Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental
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Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the
basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We and the other
auditors have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries
of management regarding the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for
consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion
or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with
sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provitde any assurance.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the City's financial statements as a whole. The Schedule of Changes in Fund Balances ~ Non-
Major Governmental Funds and the Debt Service Coverage Schedule, as listed in the table of contents,
are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the financial statements.
These schedules are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has
been subjected to the auditing procedures applied by us and the other auditors in the audit of the financial
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the
financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, based on our audit and the reporis of
the other auditors, the information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the financial
statements as a whole.
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Our discussion and analysis of the City of Lawton’s financial performance provides an overview of the
City’s financial activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010. Please read it in conjunction with the
City’s financial statements, which follow this section,

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

e For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010, the City’s total net assets increased by $18.3 million or
9.4% from the prior year.

e During the year, the City’s expenses for governmental activities were $66.6 million and were
funded by program revenues of $16.5 million and further funded with taxes and other general
revenues that totaled $55.6 million.

¢ In the City’s business-type activities, such as utilities, program revenues exceeded expenses by
$12.8 million.

s Sales and use taxes increased by $4.5 million or 12% over the prior fiscal year. Starting January
2010, the voters approved a 0.50 cent sales tax for the benefit of Lawton Public Schools. The tax
is collected by the city and remitted to the School District.

o At June 30, 2010, the General Fund reported an unreserved, undesignated fund balance of §12.1
million, which is a increase of 51% from the prior year.

« For budgetary reporting purposes, the General Fund reported revenues under estimates by
$67,030 or 0.1%, while expenditures were under final appropriations by $1,645,765 or 3.7%.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements presented herein include all of the activities of the City of Lawton (the “City™)
and its component units using the integrated approach as prescribed by GASB Statements No. 14, 34, and
39. Included in this report are government-wide statements for each of two categories of activities —
governmental and business-type, along with its discretely-presented component units. The government-
wide financial statements present the complete financial picture of the City from the economic resources
measurement focus using the accrual basis of accounting. They present governmental activities and
business-type activities separately and combined. These statements include all assets of the City
(including infrastructure capital assets) as well as all liabilities (including all long-term debt).

About the City

The City of Lawton is an incorporated municipality with a population of approximately 92,800 located in
southwestern Oklahoma. The City operates under a council-manager form of government with a charter
that provides for three branches of government.

e Legislative — the governing body includes an elected eight-member City Council and Mayor.

e Executive — the City Manager is the Chief Executive Officer and is appointed by the City
Council,

¢ Judicial — the Municipal Judge is a practicing attormey appointed by the City Council.
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The City’s Financial Reporting Entity

This annual report includes all activities for which the City Council of the City of Lawton is fiscally
responsible. These activities are operated within several separate legal entities that are reported together
to make up the City’s financial reporting entity.

The City’s financial reporting entity includes the City of Lawton, four blended component units and
seven discretely presented component units as follows.

Primary Government:

¢ The City of Lawton — incorporated municipality that operates the public safety, health and
welfare, streets and highways, culture and recreation, and administrative activities as a home rule
charter city.

Blended Component Units:

e Lawton Water Authority — public trust that operates the water, wastewater, and sanitation
services of the City.

e City Transit Trust — public trust that operates and maintains public transportation systems and
facilities. The Trust is reported as the Special Revenue Mass Transit Fund.

¢ Lawton Urban Homestead Authority — public trust created to purchase and maintain property,
buildings and facilities to upgrade neighborhood areas in accordance with the Urban
Homesteading Program of the City. The Authority is reported as the Special Revenue Lawton
Urban Housing Fund.

¢ Lawton Parking Authority (Presently Inactive) — public trust created to operate and maintain
public parking systems and facilities.

Discretely Presented Component Units:

¢ Lawton Metropolitan Area Airport Authority — public trust that operates to develop and
maintain airport operations for the City, the trust issues separate financial statements.

o Lawton Arts and Humanities Council — public trust that operates to encourage and promote
knowledge of the fine arts and humanities, the trust issues separate financial statements,

e McMahon Auditorium Authority — public trust created to operate and maintain the McMahon
Auditorium, a public and municipal auditorium of the City, the trust issues separate financial
statements.

e Museum of the Great Plains Trust Authority — public trust created to collect, preserve, and
exhibit items relevant to cultural history of man in the Great Plains of North America, the trust
issues separate financial statements.

o Lawton Economic Development Authority — public trust created to promote economic
developmeit within the Lawton area.
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¢ Lawton Industrial Development Authority (Presently Inactive) — public trust created to
promote industrial development within the Lawton area.

¢ Lawton Metropolitan Planning Organization — public trust created to coordinate planning and
development of transportation activities within the Lawton Metropolitan area, the trust issues

separate financial statements.

All of the above discretely presented component units issue separate financial statement reports which
may be obtained by contacting their respective offices.

Using This Annual Report

This annual report is presented in a format that substantially meets the presentation requirements of the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. The presentation includes financial statements that communicate the City’s financial
condition and changes therein at two distinet levels:

e The City as a Whole (a government-wide presentation)
¢ The City’s Funds (a presentation of the City’s major and aggregate non-major funds)

The City’s various government-wide and fund financial statements are presented throughout this annual
report andt are accompanied by:

o Management’s Discussion and Analysis — that provides useful analysis that facilitates a better
understanding of the City’s financial condition and changes therein.

¢ Footnotes - that claborate on the City’s accounting principles used in the preparation of the
financial statements and further explain financial statement elements.

¢  Supplemental Schedules — that provide additional information about specified elements of the
financial statements, such as budgetary comparison information, and capital assets and long-term
debt information.

Reporting the City as a Whole

The Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities

One of the most frequently asked questions about the City’s finances is, “Has the City’s overall financial
condition improved, declined or remained steady over the past year?” The Statement of Net Assets and
the Statement of Activities report information about the City as a whole and about its activities in a way
that helps answer this question. These statements include all assets and liabilities using the accrual basis
of accounting. All of the current year’s revenues and expenses are taken into account regardless of when
cash is received or paid.

These two government-wide statements report the City’s net assets and changes in them from the prior
year. You can think of the City’s net assets — the difference between assets and liabilitics - as one way to
measure the City’s financial condition, or position, Over time, increases or decreases in the City’s net
assets are one indicator of whether its financial health is improving, deteriorating, or remaining steady.
However, you must consider other nonfinancial factors, such as changes in the City’s tax base, the
condition of the City’s roads, and the quality of services to assess the overall health and performance of
the City.

10
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As mentioned above, in the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities, we divide the City
into three kinds of activities:

o  Govermmental activities - Most of the City’s basic services are reported here, inciuding the police,
fire, general administration, streets, and culture.  Sales taxes, franchise fees, fines, and state and
federal grants finance most of these activities.

o Business-type activities -- The City charges a fee to customers to help cover all or most of the cost
of cerfain services it provides. The City’s water, wastewater, and sanitation activities are reported
here.

¢ Discretely-presented component units -- These account for activities of the City’s reporting entity
that do not meet the criteria for blending, specifically the Lawton Metropolitan Area Airport
Authority, Lawton Arts and Humanities Council, McMahon Auditorium Authority, Muscum of the
Great Plains Trust Authority, Lawton Economic Development Authority, Lawton Metropolitan
Planning Organization and Lawton Industrial Development Authority. The Lawton Industrial
Development Authority is presently inactive.

Reporting the City’s Most Significant Funds

Fund Financial Statements

The fund financial statements provide detailed information about the most significant funds — not the
City as a whole. Some funds are required to be established by State law and by bond covenants.
However, the City Council establishes many other funds to help it control and manage money for
particular purposes or to show that it is meeting legal responsibilities for using certain taxes, grants and
other money.

Governmental funds -- Most of the City’s basic services are reported in governmental funds, which
focus on how money flows into and out of those funds and the balances left at year-end that are available
for spending. These funds are reported using an accounting method called modified accrual accounting,
which measures cash and all other financial assets that can readily be converied to cash. The
governmental fund statements provide a detailed short-ferm view of the City’s general government
operations and the basic service it provides. Governmental fund information helps determine whether
there are more or fewer financial resources that can be spent in the near future to finance the City’s
programs. The differences of results in the Governmental Fund financial statements to those in the
Government-Wide financial statements are explained in a reconciliation following each Governmental
Fund financial statement.

Proprietary funds - When the City charges customers for the services it provides — whether to outside
customers or to other units of the City — these services are generally reported in proprietary funds.
Proprietary funds are reported in the same way that all activities are reported in the Statement of Net
Assets, the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Assets and Statement of Cash
Flows. In fact, the City’s enterprise funds are essentially the same as the business-type activities reported
in the government-wide statements but provide more detail and additional information, such as cash
flows.

I
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Fiduciary funds - When the City is responsible for assets that — because of a trust arrangement or other
fiduciary requirement — can be used only for trust beneficiaries or others parties, these activities are
reported as fiduciary funds, such as the Employee Retirement Trust Fund. The City is responsible for
ensuring that the assets reported in these funds are used for their intended purpose. All of the City’s
fiduciary activities are reported in a separate statement of fiduciary net assets and a statement of changes
in fiduciary net assets. We exclude these activities from the City’s government-wide financial statements
because the City cannot use these assets to finance operations.

A FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITY AS A WHOLE
Net Assets
As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial

position. In the case of the City, assets exceeded Habilities by $214,196,066 at the close of the most
recent fiscal year.

Table 1
Net Assets
{In Thousands}
Governmental %o Ire, Business-type % Enc, Total %o Ine.
Activities {Dec.) Actlivities (Dec.) Primary Government (Dee.)
Restated Restated
2010 2009 2010 2049 2010 2009
Cument and other assets § 85.512 S 79,544 89% 3 42620 S 12,897 230% 5 128,132 $ 92441 9%
Capital assets 72,354 66,306 9% 179,044 174.071 3% 251,398 240,377 5%
Fotal assets 157,866 145 850 8% 221,604 186,968 1% 379.530 332 818 4%
Long-term debi putstanding 32,190 33,198 -3% 119,053 88,788 34% 151,243 121,986 24%
Osher Habilities 11,593 12,035 -4% 2,499 2,948 -13% 14,092 14,983 -6%
Total liabilities 43,783 45,233 -3% 121,552 91,736 3% 165,335 136,969 21%
Net assets:
Invested in capital assets,
net ef debt 50,432 48,887 3% 02410 92,634 -0.2% 142,842 141,521 1%
Restricted 57,653 47,952 20% 11,585 1,984 191% 69,238 51,976 33%
Unrestricted 5,999 3,738 66% {3,883) (1,386) -180% 2,116 2,352 -10%
Total net assets $ 114,084 S 100,617 £3% S 109,112 S 05,212 5% S 214,19 S 195,849 9%

The largest portion of the City’s net assets reflects its investment in capital assets (e.g., land, buildings,
machinery, and equipment), less any related debt used to acquire those assets that is still outstanding,
For 2010, this investment in capital assets, net of related debt amounted to $142,841,481. The City uses
these capital assets to provide services to citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for future
spending. Although the City’s investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be
noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital
assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.

A major portion of the City’s net assets, $69,237,873 also represents resources that are subject to
external restrictions on how they may be used. The remaining balance of unrestricted net assets,

$2,116,712, may be used to meet the government’s ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.

At the end of the current fiscal year, the City is able to report positive balances in all three categories of
net assets for the government as a whole, as weil as for the governmental activities,

12
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Explanations of significant changes displayed in Table 1 are as follows:
Govermmental Activities:

Restricted Net Assets — Increase of $9.7 million (20%) due mainly to an increase in the 2008 CIP
restricted funds from unspent general obligation bond proceeds.

Business-Type Activities:

Current and other assets — Increase of $29.7 million (230%) due to construction accounts related
to the 2008 Utility Sales Tax Revenue Bonds.

Long-term Debt QOutstanding — Increase of $30.3 million (34%) due to the issuance of three new
debt issues in FY 10.

Restricted Net Assets ~ Increase of $7.6 million (191%) due mainly to an increase in the debt
service and debt service reserve accounts.

Changes in Net Assets

For the year ended June 30, 2010, net assets of the primary govermment changed as follows:

Table 1
Changes in Net Assels
(En Thousands)

Governmentak % Ine. Business-Type % Inc, Total %o Inc.
Activities (Dec.} Activitles {Dec.) Primary Goverrment {Dec.)
2050 1008 2010 2009 2010 2009
Revenues:
Program revenues:
Charges for senvices ) 7.961 s 3,263 4% § 41,142 ) 36,134 143 § 45,103 b 44,397 Hig
Operating grants and contributions 1474 6,501 15% 4 REL -§2% 7578 7087 7%
Capital grants and contmbutions 1,095 33 3218% - - - 1,093 33 3215%
General revenues:
Sales and use taves 33,558 39,324 12% - - - 43858 39324 12%
Other taxes 9,746 8,575 4% - - - 9,746 8,575 14%%
Other genimal revenne 2,006 2,804 -28% 78 250 -69% 2084 1,054 -32%
Total revenues 72,140 65,500 He 31,324 36,970 12%% 113464 103 470 11%s
Program expenses:
General government 1,551 12431 -15% - - - 10,551 12431 -15%
Public safety 30,984 3009 -2% - - - 30,984 31,609 2%
Streets 8.651 12,385 -}MHa - - - 8,651 12,385 -30%
Education 1,534 - 100%% - - - 1,834 - 1007
Transpotiation 2693 3,219 -16%% - - - 2693 Ny -16%%
Cultural and recreation 3910 8,691 3% - - - 8,910 8,691 %
Community/economic development 1775 1,034 7% - - - 1,775 1,034 1%
Interest 1354 1,008 2495 - - - 1,254 1,008 24%
Water - - - 14,394 12,881 2% 14.394 12,551 1%
Sewer - - - 1e,107 1,176 -10%% 10.107 1,176 -10%%
Sanilation - - - 3,965 6254 -37% 3965 6,254 -37%
Tetal expenses 66,6352 70,377 -5% 28,466 30311 6% 95113 100,688 6%
Excess (deficiency)
before ransfrs 5488 4.877) 213% 12,838 6,659 93% 18346 1,782 0%
Transfers 7978 11,644 -31% {7.978) {11.644) 1%
Increase (decrease) in net assels 13,466 6,767 957 4,850 (4985)  198% 18,316 1,782 0%
Net Asseis, Beginning, restated 100617 $3.850 e 95232 96,010 -1% 195,549 159,860 3%
Net Assets, Ending $ 114,083 & 130617 13% § 106,112 S 91025 10% § 214,195 $ 191,642 12%

13
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Explanations of significant changes in excess of $1 million and 20% displayed in Table 2 are as follows:
Governmental Activities:
Capital grants and contributions — Increase of $1.0 million (3,218%) due to capital grant.

Education expense — Increase of $1.8 million (100%) due to new 0.5 cent sales tax for the school
district. Tax is collected by the city and transferred to Lawton Public Schools.

Street expenses — Decrease of $3.7 million (30%) due to a decrease in project cost related to
streets.

Business-Tvpe Activities:

Sanitation Expenses — Decrease of $2.29 million (37%) due to a decrease in landfill closure
expense.

Governmental Activities

To aid in the understanding of the Statement of Activitics some additional explanation is given. Of
particular interest is the format that is significantly different than a typical Statement of Revenues,
Expenses, and Changes in Fund Balance. You will notice that expenses are listed in the first column
with revenues from that particular program reported to the right. The result is a Net (Expense)/Revenue.
The reason for this kind of format is to highlight the relative financial burden of each of the functions on
the City’s taxpayers. It also identifies how much each function draws from the general revenues or if it is
self-financing through fees and grants or contributions. All other governinental revenues are reported as
general. It is important to note all taxes are classified as general revenue even if restricted for a specific
purpose.

Table 3
Net Revenue (Expense) of Governmental Activities
(In Thousands)

Net Revenue

Total Expense % Inc. {Expense) % ne.
of Services {Dec.) of Services (Dec))
2010 2009 2014 2009

General government s 10,551 S 12,431 -15% 8§ 543y § {4,944) 89%
Public safety 30,984 31,609 2% 29,256) (29437} 1%
Streets 8,650 {2,385 -30% (6,601) (10,393} 36%
Culture, parks and recreation 8,910 8,601 3% (8,294) {8,173} -1%
Community/economic development 1,776 1,034 72% (1,776) {1,034} -12%
Education 1,834 - 100% (1,834) - 100%
Transportation 2,693 3219 -16% (5327) (590) I1%
Interest on fong-term debt 1,254 1,008 24% (1,254) (1,608} -24%
Total S 66,652 S 70,377 5% 8 (50,085 5§ (55,579) 10%

For the year ended June 30, 2010 total expenses for governmental activities amounted to $66.7 million
which was a decrease from the prior year of 5%. See Table 2 above for explanations of changes in
excess of $1 million and 20%.

14
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Business-type Activities

Table 4
Net Revenue (Expense) of Business-Type Activities
(In Thousands)

Net Revenue

TFotal Expense % Inc. (Expense) % Inc.
of Services Dee. of Services Dec.
20i0 2000 2010 2609
Water S 14,394 S 12,881 2% S 7,135 S (6,276) 214%
Wastewater 10,107 1L176 -10% 1,768 (405  537%
Sanitation 3,964 6,254 -37% 3,877 537  -622%
Total S 28,465 S 30,311 6% S 12,780 S (6,144}  308%

The City’s business-type activities include utility services for water, wastewater, and sanitation,
In reviewing the business-type activities net (expense)/revenue, the following highlights should be noted:

¢ Total business-type activities reported net revenues of $12.8 million for the year ended June 30,
2010.

¢ All individual activities reported net revenue for the year ended June 30, 2010. For the year ended
June 30, 2009 the wastewater and water activities revenues did not cover the cost of operations.

A FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITY’S FUNDS

As the City completed its 2010 fiscal year, the governmental funds reported a combined fund balance of
$80.7 million or a 9.1% increase of $6.7 million mainly due to unspent transfers into the 2005 CIP Fund
of $16.5 million. The enterprise funds reported combined net assets of $100.1 million or a 5.1% increase

from 2009.

Other fund highlights include:
¢ Forthe year ended June 30, 2010, the General Fund’s total fund balance increased by $4,194,834
or 51.3% due mainly to an increase in sales tax collected and increase in transfers in.
e The 2005 CIP Fund’s total fund balance increased by $16.5 million or 45.9% due to an increase
in transfers in of approximately $9.1 million.

15
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General Fund Budgetary Highlights

e Over the course of the year, the City Council revised the General Fund budget various times,
Actual revenues were below estimates by $67,030 or 0.1%, while expenditures were under final
appropriations by $1,645,765 or 3.7%.

CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Capital Assets

At the end of June 30, 2010, the City had $251.4 million invested in capital assets, net of depreciation,
including police and fire equipment, buildings, park facilities, water lines and sewer lines. (See table
below). This represents a net increase of $15.2 million or 6.4% over last vear.

Table 5
Primary Government Capilal Assets
{Net of accumulated depreclation)

Governnmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Taotal
Restated Restated
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
Land 5 3,010,936 5 31010956 5 1,405,353 S 1,405,555 ) 4,416,511 S 4416511
Buildings and utility infrastructure 15,173,027 12,720,683 105,377,997 104,855,555 120,354,024 117,576,238
Machinery. fumiture and equipment 8,107,649 7.983.186 6,340,636 4,769,576 14.448,285 12,752,762
Infrastructure 24,748,738 23,209,264 - - 24,748,738 25,209,264
Unamoriized water nights - - 15,654,728 15,872,155 15,654,728 15,872,155
Construction in progress 21,314,096 17,408,494 50,264,512 47,168,406 71,578,608 64,576,900
Totals § 72,354,466 5 66,332,583 5 179,043,428 § 174,071,247 3 251,397,894 § 240,403,830

This year’s more significant capital asset additions included:

Santa Fe Bridge 51,015,441
3" Street Drainage $2,931,191
Water Lines Phase I $2,423,554
Waier Lines Phase [A $2,257,951

See Note 4 to the financial statements for more detail information on the City’s capital assets and
changes therein.

Long- Term Debt

At year-end, the City had $151 million in long-term debt outstanding which represents a $28.3 million or
23% increase from the prior year. The increase is due to the issnance of $28 million in notes payable to
the Department of Commerce under the BRAC program. The City’s changes in long-term debt by type
of debt are as follows:
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Table &
Primary Goveroment Long-Term Debt

Covernniental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
Restated Restaled
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
Accrued compensaled absences ) 5444232 8§ 4,771,821 5 780,243 § 703,127 % 6,124,496 ) 5,474,048
General Oblipation Bonds 22,140,000 24,770,000 - - 22,140,000 24,770,000
General Obligatien Boad Premivm 106,635 116,351 - - 106,053 116,351
Worker's Compensation liability 1,191,313 917,864 7R2.053 613,869 1,974,208 1,531,733
Judpments Payable 1,204,336 1,608,901 - - 1,204,356 1,008,901
Revenne Bonds Payable - - 3,020.000 1425000 3,020,000 4,425,000
Revenue Bends Premivm - - 80,139 160,277 80,139 160,277
Notes Payable 1,863,000 2,000,000 91,965,047 60,287,692 93,830,047 62,287,692
Contracts Payable - - 16,034,997 16,564,102 16,034,997 16,564,102
Tandfill Clesure and Post-¢losvre - - 6,390,406 6034914 6,390,406 6,034,914
Capital Lease Obligations 238,443 339,864 - - 238,445 339,864
Totals S 32,190,021 & 33924801 & 119.053,788 5  B8,78898F 5 i51,243,809 $ 122,713,782

See Note 6 to the financial statements for more detail information on the City’s long~term debt and
changes therein.

The Upcoming Year FY 2010-2011

The City of Lawton has invested significant dollars into our new water meter replacement program. This
program will replace approximately 28,000 water meters throughout the City. Most of the meters that are
being replaced are more than twenty years old and operating inefficiently which is costing the City of
Lawton loss of revenue. In addition we are also implementing an Automated Meter Reading (AMR)
system which will read all of our meters through a transmitter system and eliminate the need for meter
readers to walk routes and read each meter individually. The combination of the new meter installation
and the AMR system will bring more revenue to the City and also save the City dollars by reducing the
number of meter readers needed in the field, cost of vehicle replacement, and fuel. This total system has
been developed to pay for itself over a period of 15 years.

Also the City of Lawton has brought online its new South East Water Treatment plant early in the 2010
year and is expected to enable the City of Lawton to treat and produce water more efficiently, especially
for the east side of Lawton. We anticipate that with the growth of the number of apartment complexes,
single family residences, and hotels the City will need to produce and sell more water than in past years.

With the exception of the two major programs mentioned above, the expenditure side the City of Lawton
continues to be very conservative and maintaining a very small growth in operating expenditures. With
the overall economy in the Nation and the State being somewhat on a downward trend the City has
chosen a very conservative approach to both revenue and expenditure growth. The City of Lawton did
receive some grant/match doilars for public safety areas and anticipate hiring several fire and police
officers as part of the grant programs,

Sales tax revenue continues (o be positive and indicates that the City of Lawton has been somewhat
isolated from many of the issues that other cities in Oklahoma have been expertencing. Most cities are
experiencing a significant drop in sales tax revenue; however, we continue to sce a steady increase.



CITY OF LAWTON, OKLAHOMA
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Water revenue is expected to increase due to the new meter system and the anticipated growth within the
City.

Overall the City of Lawton continues to be aggressive in its policy to grow the city at large, at the same
time, being very conservative in its operational expenditures. Significant dollars are being spent in the
area of infrastructure in the City which is promoting some positive opportunities for new business to
come to Lawton and establish themselves. We believe the FY 2010-2011 will present some interesting
challenges in particular with Bargaining Unit contracts, Health Fund expenditures, and the City Pension
program. However, we feel that in order to promote growth we need to continue on an aggressive path (o
encourage industrial and retail businesses to settle in Lawton, Oklahoma. The City’s partnership with the
Ft Sill community continues to promote harmony and working together toward providing our military
personnel a better place to live and serve,

Contacting the City’s Financial Management

This report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers and creditors with an understanding
of the City’s finances and to demonstrate the City’s accountability for the resources it receives. If you
have questions about this report or need additional financial information, contact:

Mr. Rick Endicott, Finance Director
City of Lawton

103 S.W. 4" Street

Lawton, Oklahoma 73501

Telephone at 580-581-3305
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Statement of Net Assets— June 30, 2010

Primary Goverament

Governmental Business-Type Component
Activities Activities Total Units
ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents 535,282,021 $35,833,134 871,115,135 51,787,607
Investments 41,286,178 282,660 41,568,838 -
Interest receivable 169,164 163 169,327 -
Accounts receivable, net 529,960 5,077,062 5,607,622 117,835
Inventory - - - 56,594
Dug from other governments 8,053,414 - 5,053 414 73,077
Due from primazy government - - - 205,499
Internat balances (13,275) 13,275 - -
Prepaid items - - - 13,056
Other assets - . - 3,511
Capital assets:
1.and and construction in progress 24,325,052 51,670,067 75,995,119 1,293,079
Other capital assets, net of depreciation 48,029,414 127,373,361 173,402,775 14,596,369
Unamonized bond issuance costs 204,413 1,413,907 1,618,320 47,100
Total assets 157,866,341 221,664,229 379,530,570 18,195,727
LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilitics 4,881,814 995,742 5,877,556 170,551
Escrow Hability 439,536 - 439,536 -
Due to component unit 205,499 - 205,499 -
Grants payable - - - 3,246
Accrued interest payable 105,946 1,160,440 1,266,386 128,476
OPEB liability 986,538 341,916 1,328,454 -
Net pension obligation 4,973,264 . 4,673,264 -
Long-term liabilities:
Due within one year 4,443,697 13,362,653 17,806,350 5,800
Bue in more than one year 27,746,324 165,691,135 133,437 459 10,611,065
Total liabilities 43,782,618 121,551,886 165,334,504 10,919,138
NET ASSETS:
Invested in capital assets, net of telated debt 50,431,667 92,409,814 142,841,481 15,873,915
Restricted for;
Debt service 1,679,154 10,831,334 12,510,485 -
Capital projects 52,855,742 - 52,855,142 228,046
Grantor purposes 2,356,560 - 2,356,560 146,705
Landfill financial assurance - 753,726 733,720 -
Other purposes 761,360 - 761,360 -
Unrestricted 5,699,243 (3.882,531) 2,116,712 (8,972,077
Total net assels 5114,083,723 S100,112,343 $214,196,066 57,270,589

See accompanying noles to the basic financial statements.
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Statement of Activities —Year Ended June 30, 2010

Prozram Revenuis

Net {Eapense) Revenue and Chanpes In Net Assers

Operatiog Capltal Frimary Goverament
Charges for Graets and Granis and Governmaenial Businéss-Type Compoznent
Fonctions'Programs Expemscs Senvices Contri Contribatioss Acthvities Acthities Tatal Lnits
Primary Goverament:
Govienmenta) activiiies
Geswral govermment S LS5 4,686,452 S4441.721 SR40.68% (5542537 - 15542337
Public safudy G331 518 1215817 2814072 2840012 129,253917) - 129.255517)
Srreass £680.520) 1246670 . . 16,600,993}
Cultare and TeTeition LN 194 420,26 - - 17.716822)
Community devidopmn 1570730 - - - - (1,570,730}
Educarion [EEXRLY) - - - [ELEAR L]
Transpostation 2643512 IR6.255 LIT9061 - (478251 -
Eqonpanie devgopIwnt - payingr 1y composinl it pURETY] - - - 1205 503} {205 53} -
Cubture and Daration - payRiol Lo compena Ll SITIM - - - (377,130 RN RIDL]
Transportaticn - pavient 1a componant unit 49,550 . - - (49,5000 (43,5065} -
Interest o lang-form dob 1250745 - - - {1,253 745) (1,283, 745) -
Total povenmnta) avtivitics 6,652,257 7260520 7511954 1,054 20} {50.685,023) (50,485,023 -
Bersimess-type activitios:
Water 14,391 K58 21529175 - - - AL NI N RN -
Wastewatar HL167.503 FLTTLEDN 04427 - - 1,768,435 1768435 -
Samitation 1.963.507 7841306 - - - IRT13953 IKTTINY -
Toral busimeis-typae activitics 28,463,268 41142292 HH.527 - - 12,731,151 12781151 -
Total primary gove mmeat S95,117.565 5449, 182512 S1616081 S1094 500 (50,635023) 12,731,151 {37,303 £72) -
Comporent Units:
Alrpon §2416.321 53625871 127564 ST SI0T510
Cuhure and uzeation 9T6,2TR 206,631 25004 - (41,703}
Econommiy devilopnney 2051419 4046149 - - {1652 806N
TramipwiLition RR17 - 165226 -
Todal componcnt units S554L447 $2.340.121 551834 STT0.403
General vevenues:
Taas:
Sales and wse Lanes 43 655,179 - 43350079
Tax increntem fisancmg sthes taxes T1.256 - 1256 -
Fropesty lax 5193445 - 5293445 -
Frasmchise and pabliv sorvice bixes 2331021 - 2311027 -
Hotel mated 1anes L3306 - 1363036
Eargovemnwental revemae nod restrictl 1o spevific programs H18.X56 - RIER56 -
Ivestment incomue 5514 22561 MRS 12496
Misccltanevas 1,252,673 H,553 1287276 -
Paymeent from primry goy emunest . . . #3212
Payment 10 primry govermmint . - - (7818)
Transfees - Taternal sctivity 2978000 47.973.002) - -
Total peneral rovenues and transfers 63,551,212 179K, 85413 55,656,470 AU 81D
Change i ed &3ss 13,466,240 EXS LRI 18.346.50% (1072274
Netassets - beginoiog {restated) HRLGET.433 95,212,035 195,845 46% ®.148861
Net asseds - ending SH4083.122 S 112343 S 1066 51270559

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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CITY OF LAWTON, OKLAHOMA
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT

As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Governmental Funds Balance Sheet - June 30, 2010

ASSETS:

Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Receivables:
Accounts receivable
Accrued interest receivable
Due from other funds
Due from other governments and entities

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES:
Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Escrow liablity
Due to other funds
Due to component unit

Total liabilities

Fund Balances:
Reserved for:
Encuinbrances and other purposes
Unreserved
Umnreserved, reported in:
Spectal Revenue Funds
Capital Project Funds
Debt Service Funds

Total fund balances

Total liabilities and fund balances

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements,

Other Total
General 2005 CIP Governmental Governmentaf

Fund Fund Funds Funds
$ 5,730,072 $ 14,556,954 h 14,562,401 § 34,849,427
444,211 38,559,204 2,282,763 41,286,178
7,452 - 522,508 529,060
15,842 152,148 1,174 169,164
602,098 - 339,564 941,662
7,789,224 - 264,190 8,053,414
$ 14,588,899 $ 53,268,306 $ 17,972,600 $ 85,829,805
$ 2,017,101 8 402,784 $ 1,390,538 $ 3,810,423
- 437,936 1,600 439,536
- - 656,638 656,638
205,499 - . 205,499
2,222,600 840,720 2,048,776 5,112,096
242 044 4,866,336 6,084,257 11,192,637
12,124,255 47,561,250 - 59,685,505
- - 5,194,029 5,194,029
- - 2,966,387 2,966,387
. - 1,679,151 1,679,151
12,366,299 52,427,586 15,923,824 80,717,709
$ 14,588,899 $ 53,268,306 8 17,972,600 $ 85,829,805
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Governmental Funds Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances — Year

Ended June 390, 2010

Revenues:
Taxes
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Fines and forfeitures
Licenses and permits
Investment income
Miscellaneous

Total Revenues

Expenditures:

Current;
General government
Public safety
Public works and streets
Education
Culture and recreation
Community development
Transportation

Capital outlay

Debt service:

Principal retirement
Interest and fiscal charges
Judgments

Total Expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures

Other Financing Sourees (Uses):

Lease proceeds
Transfers in
Transfers out

Transfer from discretely presented component unit
Transfer to discretely presented component unit

Total Other Financing Sources {Uses)
Net change in fund balances

Fund balances - beginning

Fund balances - ending

Other Total
General 2005 CIP Governmental Governmental
Fund Fund Funds Funds

$45,174,438 . $8,437.624 $33,612,062
923,495 $96,363 6,381,507 7,400,965

- - 8,194 8,194
2,452,651 - 784,153 3,236,804
1,203,786 - 3,451,355 4,655,141
139,307 519,299 57,228 715,834
739,775 34,633 1,690,506 2,464,914
30,633,052 650,295 20,810,567 72,093,914
6,632,140 - 2,005,355 8,637.495
25,103,439 - 2,182,174 27,285,613
7,735,792 “ - 7,135,792

- - [,833,887 1,833,887
5,239,263 - 2,219,563 7,458,826

- - [,581,254 1,581,254

- - 2,643,573 2,643,573
349,586 7,293,403 10,630,552 18,273,541

“ - 3,104,864 3,104,864

- - 1,277,766 1,277,766

- - 592,532 592,532
45,060,220 7,293,403 28,071,520 80,425,143
5,572,832 (6,643,108) (7.260,953) {8,331,229)
- - 247,298 247,298
19,734,490 27,523,717 14,857,174 62,115,381
(20,648,673} (4,383,273) (21,460,841 (46,492,787)
37,815 - - 37,815
(501,630} - (330,499 (832,129)
(1,377,998) 23,140,444 (6,686,868) 15,075,578
4,194,834 16,497,336 (13,947,821) 6,744,349
8,171,465 35,930,250 20,871,645 73,973,360
$12,366,299 $52,427,586 $15,923,824 $80,717,709
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Reconciliation of Governmental Funds and Gevernment-Wide Financial Statements:

Fund Balance — Net Assets Reconciliation:

Fund balances of governmental funds $80,717,709
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net Assets are different because;

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and, therefore,
are not reported in the funds, net of accumutated depreciation of $58,752,979. 72,196,974

Certain tong-term assets are not available to pay for current fund liabilities:
Unamortized bond issuance costs 204,413

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of certain activities
to individual funds. The assets and liabilities of the internal service funds are included
in governmental activities in the sfatement of net assets. {939,819}

Certain long-term Habilities are not due and payable from current financial resources and,
therefore, are not reported in the funds:

General obligation bonds payable (22,140,600}
Unamortized debt premium (106,655)
Accrued interest payable (105,946)
Capital lease payables (238,445)
Accrued compensated absences (5,234,037)
Accrued workers compensation claims (1,191,313)
OPER liability (986,538)
Note payable (1,865,000}
Judgments payable (1,204,356)
Net pension obligation (4,973,264)

(38,045,554)

Net assets of governmentai activities $114,083,723

See accompanying notes to the basic financial staterents,
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Changes in Fund Balances — Changes in Net Assets Reconciliation:

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds

$6,744,349

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Activities are different because:

Govermnental funds report capital outlays as expenditures while governmental activities

report depreciation expense to allocate those expenditures over the life of the assets

Capital asset purchases capitalized

Loss on disposal of capital assets

Capital assets transferred to business-type activities

Depreciation expense

17,952,202
(1,732
(7,644,592)
(4,168,056

6,137,822

Repayment of debt principal is an expenditure in the governmental funds, but the

repayment reduces long-term Habilities in the Statement of Net Assets:

Incurrence of judgments rendered against the City

Judgment payments
Capital lease proceeds
Capital lease principal payments

General obligation bond principal payments

Note payable principal payments
Net pension abligation increase

(691,280)
495,825
(238,445)
339,864
2,630,000

135,000
(650,338)
2,020,626

Some expenses reported in the Statement of Activities do not require the use of

current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in

governmental {unds:

Change i accrued interest payable

Change in OPEB liability

Change in accrued compensated absences

Change in amortization of bond premium

Change in amortization ot bond issue costs
Change in accrued worker's compensation claims

111,032
(493,269)
(462,216)

9,696
(12,803)
(273 ,449)
(1,121,009)

Internal service fund activity is reported as a proprietary fund in the fund financial

statements, but certain net revenues are reported in governmental activities

on the Statement of Activities

Total change in net assets for internal service funds

Change in net assets of governmental activitics

{315,498)
{315,498)

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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CITY OF LAWTON, OKLAHOMA
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT
As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Proprietary Funds Statement of Net Assets - June 30, 2010

Lawton Internal
Water Service
Authority Funds
ASSETS:
Current assets:
Cash and cash eqaivalents $381,573 543259
Investments 282,660 -
Accounts receivable, net of allowance $869,306 5,077,662 -
Interest receivable 163 -
Due from other funds 13,275 1,701
Total current assets 5,755,333 434,295
Noncurrent assets:
Restricted assets:

Cash and cash equivalents 15,451,561 -
Unamortized bond and note issue costs 1,413,907 -
Land and construction in progress 51,670,067 -
Other capital assels, net 127,373,361 157 492

Total noncurrent assels 215,908,896 157,492

Total assets 221,664,229 591,787
LIABILITIES:
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued labilities 565,374 76,799
Acerued wages payable 429,868 38,654
Accrued interest payable [,160,440 -
Due to other funds - 300,000
Accrued compensated absences 93,240 25,121
Landfill post closure lability 6,390,406 -
Claims liability - 935,938
OPEB liability MLI16 -
Contract payable - Waurika note 547,428 -
Worker's compensation labilidy 782,955 -
Notes payable 4,073,624 -
Revenue bonds payable 1,475,000 -
Total current Habilities 15,860,751 1,386,512
Noncurrent liabilities:
Accrued compensated absences 687,004 185,094
Contract payable 15,487,569 -
Notes payable 87,891,423 -
Revenue bonds payable, net 1,625,139 -
Tetal noncustent liabilities 105,691,135 185,004
Tosat liabilities 121,551,886 1,581,606
NET ASSETS:
invested in capital assets, net of related debt 92,409,814 157,492
Restrigted for debt service 10,831,334 -
Restricted for landfill financial assurance 753,726 -
Unrestricted {3,882,531) (1, 147,311)
Total net assets $100,112,343 (5989,819)

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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Proprietary Funds Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets - Year Ended
June 30, 2010

Lawton Internat
Water Service
Authority Funds
Operating Revenues:
Charges for services $40,991,766 £7.566,953
Rentals 144,320 -
Other sources 6,206 -
Total operating revenues 41,142,292 7.566,953
Operating Expenses:
General government and claims - 6,621,319
Public works operations 18,728,734 -
Computer service operations - 1,160,752
Depreciation expense 5,416,984 131,837
Amortization expense 381,594 -
Landfill closure expense 355,492 -
Total operating expenses 24,882,804 7,913,908
Operating income (loss) 16,259,488 (346,955)
Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses):
Investment income 44,598 -
Interest expense and fiscal charges (3,582 464) -
Other non-operating revenue {expense) 136,688 (46)
Total non-operating revenues {expenses) (3,401,178) (46)
Net income (loss) before contributions and transfers 12,858,310 {347,001)
Capital contributions 7,644,592 31,503
Transfers in 14,130,578 -
Transfers out (29,753,172) -
Change in net assefs 4,880,308 (315,498)
Total net assets - beginning, restated 95,232,035 (674,321}
Total net assets - ending $100,112,343 {$989,819)

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements,
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Proprietary Funds Statement of Cash Flows - Year Ended June 30, 2010

Lawton Internal
Water Service
Authority Funds
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from customers 5 40958951 S 7.566.953
Payments to suppliers {9.056,280) -
Payviments to employees {9.837.350) (1,137.875}
Receipts from interfund toan 8,544 B
Payments on interfund foan - (16.184)
Claims and benefits paid - (6,437.907)
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities 31,573,865 (25.01%)
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Transfers from other funds 14,130,578 -
Transfers to other funds 129,753,175} -
Nert Cash Provided by {Used in) Non-Capital Financing Activities (13,622,597} -
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from notes issued 16,164,005 -
Capital assets purchased (2.964.190) (11.628)
Principal paid on capital debt (6.420.805) B
Interest and fiscal charges paid on capitaf debt (3,600,350) -
Proceeds from sale of capital nssets 2.165 50!
Note issuance cost paid (681.237) -
Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Capital and Related Financing Activities 22,499,588 (11,127)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Sale of investmenis 3.435.302 -
Interest and dividends 67,587 -
Net Cash Provided by (Used in} Investing Activitics 1,503,289 -
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 32,354,145 {36,140)
Balances - beginning of the year 3,478,589 468,734
Balances - end of the vear §  35833,134 432,594
Reconciliation to Statement of Net Assels:
Cash and cash equivaients M 381573 432,594
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 35.451,561 -
Total cash and cash equivalents § 35813134 432,594
Reconciliation of operating income {loss) to net cash previded
by eperating activities:
Operating income (loss) S 16250488 (344,955)
Adjustments to reconeile operating income 1o net cash provided
{used) by cperating activities:
[epreciation expense 5416984 131837
Amortization expense 381,594 -
Landtill closure expense 355492 -
Other miscellancous revenue 136,703 -
Change in assets and fiabilities:
Reccivables, net (320,044) -
Dug from other funds 8,544 {813)
Accounts payables (733,071) 69,286
Clzims liability 169,086 14,126
Due to other funds - (15,.371)
OPEB liability 170,958 -
Accrued wages payable 51084 4185
Accrued compensated absences T 18,692
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities $ 21973865 (25.01%)
Non-cash activity:
Non-cash capital contributions received § 7644592 31,503

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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CITY OF LAWTON, OKLAHOMA
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT
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Fiduciary Funds Statement of Net Assets - June 30, 2010

ASSETS:

Cash and cash equivalents

Investments, at book value

Investments, at market value;
United States government securities and agencies
Common stock
Mutual funds

Interest receivable

Employer contributions receivable

Employee contributions receivable

Total assets

LIABILITIES:
Due to depositors
Other payables

Total liabilities

NET ASSETS:
Held in trust for pension benefits

City
Employees
Retirement Agency
Trust Fund Funds
$1,897,421 $383,844
1,233,754 1,788,725
21,162,354 -
1,507,012 “
13,731,712 -
122,145 1,480
87,751 -
51,677 -
$39,793,826 $2,174,049
b - $2,095,636
- 78,413
- $2,174,049

$39,793,826

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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Pension Trust Fund Statement of Changes in Plan Net Assets — Year Ended June 30, 2010

City
Employces
Retirement
Trust Fund

ADDITIONS:

Contributions:
Members § 1,074,483
Employer 1,717,252
Total Contributions 2,791,735

Investment Income {Loss):

Net increase in fair value of investments 1,331,401
Interest, dividends, and other 1,395,697
Total investment income (loss) 2,727,098

Less investment expense:

Investment activity expense (203,499}
Net investment income (loss) 2,523,599
Total Additions 5,315,334
DEDUCTIONS:
Benefits paid to participants or beneficiaries 2,819,579
Refunds and transfers to other systems 567,575
Administrative expense 23,837
Total Deductions 3,410,991

Change in net assets heid in trust for

employees' pension benefits 1,904,343
Net assets--beginning 37,889,483
Net assets--ending § 39,793,826

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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Component Units ~ Combining Statement of Net Assets - June 30, 2010

ASSETS

Current Assets:
Cash, including time deposits
Accounls receivable
Inventory
Dree from other gavermnments
Due from primiry government
Prepaid expenses
Other assats
Tolal current assels

Noncurrend Assels:
Capital Assets:
1and and construction in progress
Depraciable, net of accumulated deprecialion
Unamortized note issuance costs
Tetal noncurrent assets

Total Assets

LIABILITIES
Curreni Liabilities:
Aceounts payable and ecerued liabilitGes
Grants payable
Deferred ravenue
Interest payahle
Notes payable
Total carvent Habilitdes

Noncurrent LiahiiHies:
Accreed compensated sbeences
Notes payable

Total noncarrent Babilities

Toizl Liabilities

NET ASSEES
Investment in capital assets, ret of selated debt
Restricted for construction projects
Restricted for prometions
Restricted for grant projects
Unrestricted

Total Net Assets

LAWTON LAWTON MUSEUM LAWTON LAWTON
METROPOLITAN  ARTS AND MUMAHON OF THE ECONOMIC METROFOLITAN
AREA AIRPORT  HUMANITIES  AUDITORIUM  GREATPLAINS  DEVELOPMENT PLANNING
AUTHORITY COUNCIL AUTHORITY _ TRUST AUTHORITY _ AUTHORITY ORGANIZATION TOTALS
7348 8 &1 3 B2AL s 39234 8§ 505,922 5 TLISE§ 1,787,607
65640 . 3943 48,252 - - 117,835
3619 . - 24975 - - 56,59
69,664 3413 - - . B 73077
- . . - 205499 - 205,493
13,006 50 - - - 13,056
- - - 5511 - . 5514
923 147 57,591 1054 417972 1421 718K 3255179
1,293,079 - . . - . 1293079
13,225,926 26 3TAI6 1,328,051 . 4,750 14,596,369
- - . . 47,100 . 47,300
14518805 426 T74lg 1325051 47,100 4,750 13936548
15,442,052 58,023 114.570 1,746,023 758,521 76,538 18,195,727
96,460 B 460 19,691 . 170,551
. 3,246 - - - 1246
13 - - - 128,463 - 128 476
5800 - - - - - 5800
96,273 3246 308 79691 128463 - 308,073
&015 - - . - 6015
9,734 - - 10,595,346 - 10,605,050
15,749 - - - 10,595,316 . 10.611,065
112,022 1246 400 39,691 19,723,779 - 10,919,138
14,503,272 426 37416 1328051 1,750 15873915
228,048 - - - - 22846
- - . 146,705 . . 146,705
98,712 54351 76,754 191576 {9.965.258) 71788 (8972071
15330,030 5 14971 5 HAI0 8 L6663 % (uues2s 8 76538 8 7076589

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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Component Units - Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets - Year
Ended June 30, 2010

LAWTON LAWTON MUSELM LAWTON LAWTON

METROPOLITAN ARTS AND MCMAHON OF THE ECONOMIC  METROPOLITAN
AREA AIRPORT  HUMANITIES AUDITORIUM GREAT PLAINS DEYELOPMENT PLANNING
AUTHORITY COUNCIL AUTHORITY  TRUST AUTHORITY AUTHORITY ORGANIZATION TOTALS
Espenses:
Alrpont $ 2416626 b - $ - s - S - $ - 5 2416.626
Culture and recreation - 120,865 93.284 762229 - - 976373
Economic developiment - - - - 1.686.269 - 1.686.269
Transportation - - - - - §8.317 88.317
Tnterest expense 2,707 - B - 371,150 - 373857
Total expenses 2419133 120865 53284 762229 2,057419 88.317 5.541,447
Program Revenues:
Charges for senvices 1628871 32,677 931361 160,393 4619 - 2,340,321
Operating grants and comtributions 127,364 69,516 B 189328 - 165.226 551,834
Capital grants and contdbutions 770463 - - - - - 770.408
Tetal program rej entes 2.526.843 122,193 93.561 349921 404,619 165,226 3,662,363
Net revenue (expense} 107.310 1328 277 (412.308) (1.632.800) 76,909 {1.872.084)
General Revenoes:
Invesiment income 6.718 . N 3348 2,066 93 12496
Trensfer from primary povernment 49500 2,130 - 573.000 205495 - §32,12¢
Transfer to primary govemment - - - - - (37.813) {37.813)
Total general revenues 36,218 2,130 271 378.348 107,565 (37.722) 506,810
Change ia Net Assels 163,728 EREH 548 166,040 {1.445.233) 39187 (1.072.274)
Net Assets, beginning of year 13.166.302 31319 113.622 1.500.292 (8.520.023} 37.151 £.348.863
Net Assets, end of year % 15.330.830 § 343717 3 114170 g 1.666,332 $ 19965238y 3 16,538 $  7.276,389

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statenents.
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Footnotes to the Basic Financial Statements:
1. Financial Reporting Entity

In determining the financial reporting entity, the City complies with the provisions of Governmental
Accounting Standards Board Statements No. 14, 34 and 39 and includes all component units for which
the City is financially accountable/fiscally responsible. The City’s financial reporting entity’s primary
government presentation includes the City of Lawton and the certain component units as follows:

The City of Lawton — that operates the public safety, health and welfare, streets, culture and
recreation, and administrative activities,

The City of Lawton is an incorporated municipality with a population of approximately 92,800 located
in southwestern Oklahoma. The City operates under a council-manager form of government with a
charter that provides for three branches of government:

o Legislative — the governing body includes an elected eight-member City Council and Mayor,

e Executive — the City Manager 1s the Chiefl Executive Officer and is appointed by the City
Council.

o  Judicial — the Municipal Judge is a practicing attomey appointed by the City Council.

Blended Component Units (separate legal entities for which the City Council is fiscally responsible,
and for which the City Council members serve as the trustees/governing body of the entity):

Lawton Water Authority — that operates the water, wastewater, and sanitation services of
the City.

City Transit Trust — public trust that operates and maintains public transportation systems and
facilities. The Trust is reported as the Special Revenue Mass Transit Fund.

Lawton Urban Homestead Authority — created to purchase and maintain property, buildings,
facilities, and to upgrade neighborhood areas in accordance with the Urban Homesteading Program

of the City. The Authority is reported as the Special Revenue Lawton Urban Housing Fund.

Lawton Parking Authority (Inactive) — created to operate and maintain public parking
systems and facilities.

Discretely Presented Component Units (separate legal entities for which the City Council is fiscally
responsible, but appoints a separate governing body):

Lawton Metropolitan Area Airport Authority — that operates to develop and maintain
aitport operations for the City.

Lawton Arts and Humanities Council — that operates to encourage and promote knowledge
of the fine arts and humanities.
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McMahon Auditorium Authority — created to operate and maintain the McMahon
Auditorium, a public and municipal auditorium of the City.

Museum of the Great Plains Trust Authority — created to collect, preserve, and exhibit
items relevant to the cultaral history of man in the Great Plains of North America.

Lawton Economic Development Authority — created to promote economic development
within the Lawton area.

Lawton Industriai Development Authority (Presently Inactive} — created to promote
industrial development within the Lawton area.

Lawton Metropolitan Planning Organization — created to coordinate planning and
development of transportation activities within the Lawton Metropolitan area.

Fach of these component units listed above are Public Trusts established pursuant to Title 60 of
Oklahoma State law. Public Trusts (Authorities) have no taxing power. The Authorities are generally
created to finance City services through issuance of revenue bonds or other non-general obligation debt
and to enable the City Council to delegate certain functions to the governing body (Trustees) of the
Authority. In accordance with state law, the City Council nwust approve, by two-thirds vote, all debt
obligations of these public trusts prior to incurring the obligation. The Authorities generally retain title
to assets which are acquired or constructed with Authority debt or other Authority generated resources.
In addition, the City has leased certain existing assets at the creation of the Authorities to the Trustees
on a long-term basis. The City, as beneficiary of the Public Trusts, receives title to any residual assets
when a Puablic Trust is dissolved.

Related Organizations:

A related organization is one for which the City is not financially accountable, even though it appoints
a voting majority of the organization’s governing body. Such organizations include:

e Lawton Housing Authority
¢ Lawton Urban Renewal Authority

Related organizations are not included within the City’s reporting entity financial statements.

2. Basis of Presentation and Accounting

This annual report is presented in a format that substantially meets the presentation requirements of the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. The presentation includes financial statements that communicate the City’s financial
condition and changes therein at two distinct levels:

» The City as a Whole (a government-wide presentation)
e The City’s Funds (a presentation of the City’s major and aggregate non-major funds)
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Government-Wide Financial Statements:

In the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities, we divide the City into two kinds of
activities:

Governmental activities - Most of the City’s basic services are reported here, including the police, fire,
general administration, streets, culture and recreation. Sales taxes, franchise fees, fines, state and federal
grants finance most of these activities; and

Business-type activities — Services where the City charges a fee to customers to help it cover all or most

of the cost of these services it provides, The City’s water, sewer, and sanitation systems activities are
reported here.

The statements of net assets and activities are reported on the accrual basis of accounting and economic
resowrces measurement focus. Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when

earned and expenses (including depreciation and amortization) are recorded when the liability is incurred
or economic asset used.

For business-type activities, Financial Accounting Standard Board (FASB) pronouncements and
Accounting Principles Board (APB) opinions issued on or before November 30, 1989, have been applied,
unless those pronouncements conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements, in which case, GASB
prevails.

Fund Financial Statements:

Governmental Funds:

Most of the City’s basic services are reported in governmental funds, which focus on how money flows
into and out of those funds and the balances left at year-end that are available for spending.
Govermmental funds report their activities on the modified accrual basis of accounting and current
financial resources measurement focus that is different from other funds. For example, these funds
report the acquisition of capital assets and payments for debt principal as expenditures and not as
changes to asset and debt balances. The governmental fimd statements provide a detailed short-term
view of the City’s general government operations and the basic services it provides, Governmental
fund information helps you determine (through a review of changes to fund balance) whether there are
more or fewer financial resources that can be spent in the near future to finance the City’s programs.
The City’s governmental funds include:

Major Funds:
e  General Fund — accounts for all activities not accounted for in other special-pupose funds

e 2005 CIP Fund — accounts for various projects such as the southeast water treatment plant
and street projects

Aggregated Non-Major Funds (reported as Other Governmental Funds):

Special Revenue Funds: Real Property Proceeds Fund, RSVP Fund, Public Library Fund, Small
Business Loan Fund, CDBG Fund, HOME Investment CDBG Fund, Lawton Urban Housing Fund,
Police Grant Fund, Park Fee Fund, Hunting and Fishing Permits Fund, Narcotics Fund, Animal
Sterilization Fund, Insurance Proceeds Fund, Emergency 911 Fund, Adult Softball Fund, Cemetery
Care Fund, Officers Training Fund, Court Credit Card Maintenance Fund, Lawton Parking Authority
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Fund, Senior Crafts Fund, Animal License Fund, Elmer Thomas Park Rental Fund, State Landfill Fund,
Police Sentinel Fund, Fire Prevention Education Fund, Grants and Gifts Fund, McMzhon Authority
Grants Fund, Drainage Maintenance Fund, Animal Donation Fund, Application Fees Fund, Capital
Outlay Rolling Stock Fund, LETA Beautification Fund, Cemetery Reward Fund, Centennial Fund,
Hotel/Motel Tax Fund, Project Impact Fund, Mass Transit Fund, Reserve Fund, Federal Grant Fund,
Recycling Fund, Impact Fees Fund, Police and Fire Training Fund, Special Jail Fund, Cellular Service
Fee Fund, Stormwater Mitigation Fund, Payroll Claims, United Safety Fund, and TIF Fund.

Debt Service Funds — accounts for ad-valorem taxes levied by the City for use in retiring court-assessed
judgments, general obligation bonds, and their related interest expenses. The city’s two debt service
funds are the Prior to 1972 Fund and the Ad Valorem 2005 Fund.

Capital Project Funds:

e Capital Improvement Fund — accounts for transfers from other City funds for various capital
acquisitions and projects.

e CIP 1995 Fund — accounts for sales taxes restricted for specified capital projects.

e 2000 CIP Fund — accounts for improvements to the water treatment plant, streets and other
miscellancous water projects.

e 2008 CIP Sales Tax Fund — accounts for sales tax restricted to streets, waterline
improvements, sewerline improvements, and sewer rehabilitation program.

The governmental funds are reported on the modified accrual basis of accounting, On the modified
accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recorded when eamed and measurable and available to pay
current financial obligations, while expenditures are recorded when incurred and normally due and
payable from current financial resources. The City defines revenue availability as collected within 60
days of period end.

The reconciliation of the governmental funds financial statements to the governmental activities
presentation in the government-wide financial statements is the result of the use of the accrual basis of
accounting and economic resources measurement focus at the government-wide level.

Proprietary Funds:

When the City charges customers for the services it provides, these services are generally reported in
proprietary funds. Proprietary funds include enterprise funds and internal service funds. Enterprise
funds are used to account for business-like activities provided to the general public. Internal service
funds are used to account for business-like activities provided to other funds or departments of the
City. Proprietary funds are reported on the accrual basis of accounting and economic resources
measurement focus. For example, proprictary fund capital assets are capitalized and depreciated and
principal payments on long-term debt are recorded as a reduction to the liability. For the enterprise
funds, Financial Accounting Standard Board (FASB) pronouncements and Accounting Principles
Board (APB) opinions issued on or before November 30, 1989, have been applied, unless those
pronouncements conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements, in which case, GASB prevails.

The City’s proprietary funds include the following:

Enterprise Fund

¢ Lawton Public Works Authority Fund that accounts for the activities of the public trust in
providing water, sewer, and sanitation services to the public.
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Internal Service Funds (combined for reporting purposes)

e Group Insurance Fund that accounts for the cost of providing various insurance services to
other funds and departments of the City.

e Computer Service Tund that accounts for the cost of providing automation services to other
funds and departments of the City.

Fiduciary Funds:

The City’s fiduciary funds are used to report net assets and changes therein of assets held by the City in
a trustee or fiduciary capacity. These net assets are not available for operations of the City. The City
reports two types of fiduciary funds: Pension Trust Fund and Agency Funds. Agency funds are
custodial in nature (i.e., assets equal liabilities) and do not involve the measurement of changes in net
assets.

The fiduciary funds are reported on the accrual basis of accounting and economic resources
measurement focus. The City’s fiduciary funds include:

Pension Trust Fund

City Employees Retirement Trust Fund — accounts for assets and changes therein of the City’s single
employer defined benefit plan.

Agency Funds

Used to account for assets held on behalf of others including the License & Permits Fund, Meter
Deposits Fund, Municipal Court Fund, Payroll Savings Fund, and Flexible Benefits Fund.

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Deposits and Investments

Cash and cash equivalents includes all demand and savings accounts, certificates of deposit or
short-term investments with an original maturity of three-months or less, and money market
investments. Trust account investments in open-ended mutual fund shares are also considered cash
equivalents.

Investments consist of long-term certificates of deposit, U.S. Treasury bonds and notes, U.S. agency
securities, government money market funds, and conunon stock in the employee retirement fund only.
Certificates of deposit are reported at cost, while the U.S. Treasury and agency securities and common
stock are reported at fair value which is determined by quoted market value.

The retirement plan’s investments in judgments are valued at original judgment value, less principal
collected since no quoted market price is available.

Deposits and Investments Risks

The City of Lawton primary government and blended component units are governed by the deposit
and investment limitations of state law and trust indentures. The deposits and investments held at
June 30, 2010 by these entities are as follows:
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Schedule of Deposits and Investments by Type - June 30, 2019

Maturities in Years

Fait Cradiz On Less . haore
Type Valug Raling Demand Than Ong 1-5 - 10 than 10
Bemand depasits 28,024 877 nia 28024877 3 - b3 -
Time deposits 13.290.623 n'a - 1,660,233 11,610,350 -
Meney Market Accounts 46,195,549 n'a 46,195,549 - -
V.S, Treasury Obligations 58,521 nia - - 58,621 -
U.8. Agencies Obfigations 50,336,667 AAA - . 26,184,313 21,162,354
Sub-Total 137,916,337 74,220,426 $ 1,660,233 $ 40873324 21.162.354
Mutual Fuads 13,731,712 n'a
Lommon stock 1,507,012 n'a
Other Investments 1,233,754 nfa
Total Deposits and Investments 154,388 315
Reconcifiztion to Financial Statements:
Cash and cash equivalents 71115155
Investments 41,568,838
Retirement fund investments:
investments 1,233,754
U5, gov't security agencies 21.162.354
Common steck 1,507,012
Mutual funds 13,731,712
Retirement fund cash and cash equivalents 1,897,421
Agency fund cash and cash equivalents 333.844
Agency fund Investments 1.788,725

) 154,388,515

Custodial Credit Risk — Exposure to custodial credit risk related to deposits exists when the City holds
deposits that are uninsured and uncollateralized; collateralized with securities held by the pledging
financial institution, or by its trust department or agent but not in the City’s name; or collateralized
without a written or approved collateral agreement. Exposure to custodial credit risk related to
investments exists when the City holds investments that are uninsured and unregistered, with securities
held by the counterparty or by its trust department or agent but not in the City’s naine.

The City’s policy as it relates to custodial credit risk is to secure its uninsured deposits with collateral,
valued at no more than market value, at least at a level of 102% of the uninsured deposits and accrued
interest thereon, The City’s policy limits acceptable collateral to U.S. Treasury securities, federally
insured obligations, or direct debt obligations of municipalities, counties, and school districts in
Oklahoma. Also, as required by Federal 12 U.S.C.A., Section 1823(e), all financial institutions pledging
collateral o the City must have a written collateral agreement approved by the board of directors or loan
committee.

At June 30, 2010, the City was not exposed to custodial credit risk.

Investment Credit Risk — The City’s investment policy limits investments, excluding retirement trust fund
investments, to the following:

a. Obligations of the U. S. Govermmnent, its agencies and instrumentalities;

b. Collateralized or insured non-negotiable certificates of deposit or other evidences of deposit that are
either insured or secured with acceptable collateral with an in-state financial institution, and fully insured
deposits in out-of-state institutions;

¢. Insured or fully collateralized negotiable certificates of deposit;
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d. Repurchase agreements that have underlying collateral consisting of those items specified in paragraph
a above; and

e. Money market funds regulated by the SEC and in which investments counsist of the investments
mentioned in the previous paragraph a.

Investment credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its
obhigations. The City and retirement plan have no formal policy limiting investments based on credit
rating, but discloses any such credit risk associated with their investments by reporting the credit quality
ratings of investments in debt securities as determined by nationally recognized statistical rating
organizations—rating agencies—as of the vear end. Unless there is information to the contrary,
obligations of the U.S. government or obligations explicitly guaranteed by the U.S. government are not
considered to have credit risk and do not require disclosure of credit quality.

Investment Interest Rate Risk — Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely
affect the fair value of an investment. The City’s and Retirement Plan’s investment policy indicates that
the investment portfolio, except for retirement trust fund investments, shall remain sufficiently liquid to
enable the City to meet all operating requirements as anticipated. It sets a desired limit on investment
maturities to a period of three years, as a means of managing exposure to fair value losses arising from
increasing interest rates, for non-retirement investments. The City discloses ifs exposure to interest rate
risk by disclosing the maturity dates of its various investments by date range.

As noted in the schedule of deposits and investments above, at June 30, 2010, the investments held by the
City mature between 2010 through 2040,

Concentration of Investment Credit Risk - Exposure to concentration of credit risk is considered to exist
when investinents in any one issuer represent a significant percent of total investments of the City (any
over 5% are disclosed). Investments issued or explicitly guaranteed by the U.S. government and
mvestments in mutual funds, external investment pools, and other pooled investments are excluded from
this consideration. The City’s investment policy requires diversification of investments and indicates
that, with the exception of U.S. Treasury securities and authorized pools, no more than 50% of the City’s
total investment portfolio will be invested in a single financial institution. The city has 40.5% of their
investments in FHLB and §.2% in FNMA.

Restricted Cash and Investments

The amounts reported as restricted assets of the Enterprise Fund on the statement of net assets are
comprised of amounnts held by the Lawton Water Authority in accounts of the trustee bank for revenue
bond retirement, and other accounts with restricted uses. The restricted assets as of June 30, 2010 are as
follows:
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Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents:

Pooled cash restricted for debt service $ 267,926
Landfill Financial Trust 153,658
Series 2001B Promissory Note Debt Sve 215,763
Series 2001B Promissory Note Debt Reserve 260,000
Series 2003B OWRB Promissory Note Debt Sve 102,243
Series 20038 OWRE Promissory Note Reserve 222,383
Series 2003D OWRB Promissory Note Debt Svo 58,744
Series 2003D OWRB Promissory Note Reserve 126,620
Series 2004F OWRB Promissory Note Debt Sve 73,050
Series 2004F OWRB Promissory Note Reserve 152,854
Series 2004 Sales Tax Utility Revenue Bond

Debt Service 813,029
Series 2004 Sales Tax Utility Revenue Bond

Construction 1,546
Chevron Energy 2008 Sinking Fund 45,688
Series 2008 Sales Tax Utility Revenue Bonds

Debt Service 8,538,722
Series 2008 Sales Tax Utility Revenue Bonds

Construction 24,419,335

3 35451561

4. Capital Assets and Depreciation

Capital Assets:

For the primary government and component units, capital assets are reported at actual or estimated
historical cost, net of accumulated depreciation where applicable. Donated capital assets are reported at
their fair value at date of donation, Estimated historical cost was used to value the majority of the capital
assets acquired prior to June 30, 1992, The capitalization threshold is capital assets with a cost of $1,000
or more,

For the year ended Tune 30, 2010, capital assets balances changed as follows:
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Restated
Balance at Balance ot
July 1, 2009 Additions Deductions June 30, 2010
PRIMARY GOVERNMENT:
Governmenial activities:
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land $ 3010556 S -8 - %8 301095
Caonstruction in progress 17,408,494 8,425,370 4,519,768 21,314,096
Tolal capital assets not being depreciated 20,419,450 8,425,370 4,519,768 24,325,052
Other capital assets:
Buildings and improvements 28,358,159 2,985,495 " 31,343,654
Infrastructure 45,541,194 1,019,041 - 46,560,235
Machinery, furniture and equipment 28,595,607 2,281,533 792,887 30,084,253
Intangibles 96,363 - - 96,363
Total other capital assels 102,591,323 6,286,069 792,887 108,084,505
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings and improvements 15,733,839 533,151 - 16,266,990
Infrastruciure 20,331,930 1,479,567 - 21,811,497
Machinery, furniture and equipment 20,612,421 2,155,338 791,155 21,976,604
Total zecunlated depreciation: 56,678,190 4,168,056 791,155 60,055,091
Other capital assets, net 45,913,133 2,118,013 1,732 48,029,414
Governmental activities capital assets, nicl 5 66,312,583 5 10,543,383 S 4,521,500 § 72,354,466
Restated
Balance at Balance at
July 1, 2009 Additions Deductions June 30, 2010
Business-type activifies:
Capital assets noj being depreciated:
Land S 1,403,555 5 - S - S 1,405,555
Construction in progress 47,168,408 7,777,611 4,681,505 50,264,512
Total capital assets not being depreciated 48,573,961 7,777,611 4,681,505 51,670,067
Other capital assets:
Buildings and utility inffastructure 169,684,058 4,681,505 - 174,365,563
Machinery, furniture and equipment 16,936,649 2,831,171 565,168 19,202,652
Water rights 21,742,677 - - 21,742,677
Total other capital assets 208,363,384 7,512,676 563,168 215,310,892
Less accumutated depreciation for:
Buildings and utility infrastructure 64,828,503 4,159,063 - 68,987,566
Machinery, fimniture and cquipment 12,167,073 1,257,921 562,978 12,862,014
Water rights 5,870,522 217,427 - 6,087,949
Total accumulated depreciation 82,866,098 5,634,411 562,978 87,937,531
Other capital assets, net 125,497,286 1,878,265 2,190 127,373,361
Business-type activities capifal assets, nef § 174,071,247 5 9,655,876 S 4,683,695 5 179,043,428
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Balance at Balance at
July {, 2009 Additiens Deductions June 30, 2010
COMPONENT UNITS:
Lawion Metrepolitan Avea Airport Authority
Non-depreciable;
Land $ 387,783 $ - $ - - 387,783
Construction-in-progress 121,698 319,229 135,631 905,296
Total non-depreciable assels at historical cost 609,481 819,229 135,631 1,203,079
Depreciable:
Runways, ramps, and roads 21,572,115 5,864 12,650 21,565,329
Buildings and improvements 5,627,293 311,840 - 5,939,138
Equipment and fixtures 1,786,575 23614 227,455 1,582,731
Furniture and equipment 132,795 2,287 30,847 104,235
Tolal depreciable assets at historical cost 29,118,783 143,602 270,952 20,191,433
Less accumulated depreciation
Rumways, ramps, and roads 11,535,144 763,308 10,805 12,292,647
Buildings and improvements 2,342,572 129,737 - 2,472,309
Equipment and fixtures 1,182,808 73,697 142,778 1,113,727
Furniture and equipment 114,492 3379 30,847 87,024
Total accumulated deprecialion 15,175,016 875,521 184,430 15,965,707
Other capital assets, net 13,943,767 (631,519) 86,522 13,225,726
Nel depreciable assets 5 14,553,248 5 187,710 N 222,153 $ 14,518,805
Musenm of the Great Phains Trust Authority
Depreciable:
Furniture and equipment 5 309,018 S 12,108 S 14,017 $ 307,109
Displays 17,125 - - 17,725
Leasehold improvements 120,092 49,286 - 169,378
Callections and exhibits 1,039,034 43,554 - 1,082,588
Totat depreciable assets at historical cost 1,485,869 104,948 14,087 1,576,800
Less accumulated depreciation
Total aceumulated depreciation 240,181 21,472 12,904 248,749
Net deprecinble assets S 1,245,688 5 83,476 5 1,113 5 1,323,051
Lawten Metropolitan Planning Organization:
Depreciable:
Furniture and equipanent $ 35,242 S - 5 3,895 S 3347
Less accumulated depreciation
Total accumulated deprevistion 28,502 1,990 3,895 26,597
Net depreciahle assets $ 6,740 5 (1,990) 3 - $ 4,750
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Balanee at Batance at
July 1, 2009 Additions Deduciions June 36, 2010
Michlahon Auditorium Autherity
Depreciable:

Fumiture and fixiures 5 24,628 5 - 5 - s 24,628
Buildings iinprevements 48,205 - - 68,295
Machinery and equipment 6,500 - - 6.500
Total depreciable assels at historical cost 99,421 - 99,423

Less accumulated depreciation
Fumnijure and fixtures 24,507 il - 24,628
Buildings improvemens 25,024 5,855 - 30,879
Machinery and egnipment 6,351 148 - 6,500
Total accunlated depreciation 55,892 6,113 - 62.007
Net depreciable assets 5 43,531 5 {6,115} $ - $ 37416

Balance at
June 3G, 2010
Lawton Ars and Humanities Council

Maclhinery and equiptnent s 18,456
Less accumulated depreciation (18,030}
Net depreciable assets ) 426

Depreciation:

Depreciable capital assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over their useful lives. The range of

estimated lives by type of assets is as follows:

= Buildings 50 years

+ Improvements other than buildings 20-40 years
s  Utility property and improvements 15-50 years
e Infrastructure 15-50 years
e  Machinery, furniture, and equipment 5-25 years
s  Water rights 50 years

Depreciation of capital assets is included in total expenses and is charged or allocated to the activities
primarily benefiting from the use of the specific asset. Depreciation expense has been allocated as

follows:

Governmental Activities:

General Governiment

Public Safety

Streets

Community Develepment

Culture and Recreation
Sub-total govemmental funds depreciation

Allocated Internal Service Fund Depreciation
Total

Business-Type Activities:
Water
Sewer
Sanitation
Total depreciation
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$ 601,534
2,089,768
592,550
12,106

571,261
4,036,219
131,837

S 4,168,056

S 2,719,008
1,914,770
1,060,633
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5. Internal and Interfund Balances and Transfers

Internal Balances:

Receivable Fund Payable Fund Amount Nature of Inteyfund Balance
General Fund Hunting and Fishing 3 13,931  Grant funding
General Fund Intemai Service Fund 300,000 Insurance reimbursement
General Fund Emergency 911 231,040  Reimbursement
Hunting and Fishing Pennits Payrolt Claims Fund 437 Payroll payable
HOME Investment CDBG CDBG Fund 3,788 Gmant funding
Payroll Claims Fund CDBG Fund 7,087  Payroll payable
Workers Comp Fund CDBG Fund 578 Granot funding
Payroll Claims Fund HOME Investment CDBG 1,377  Payroll payable
Reserve Fund Federal Grant Fund 318,530  Grant funding
General Fund Payroll Claims Fund 57,127  Payroll payable
Inlemnal Service Fund Payroll Claims Fund 1,701 Payoll payable
Water Authority Payroll Claims Fund 10,604  Payroll payable
Stormwater Mitigation Payroll Claims Fund 622 Payroll payable
Payroll Claims Fund RSVP Fund 4,215  Payroll payable
Emergency 911 Payroll Claims Fund 2,067 Payroll payable
Water Authority Payroll Claims Fund 2,671 Payroll payable
Drainage Maintenance Fund Payroll Claims Fund 863  Payroll payable
Total S 956,638
Due From Due To Net Internal
Reconcitiation to Fund Financial Statements; Other Furds Other Funds Balances
Govemnmental Funds $ 941,662 § 656,638 $ 285,024
Proprietary Funds 13,275 - 13,275
Internal Service Funds 1,701 300,000 (298,299)
Total $ 956,638 § 956,638 5 -

Internal and Interfund Fransfers:

The City’s policy is to eliminate interfund transfers between funds in the statement of activities to
avoid the grossing up of balances. Only the residual balances transferred between governmental and
business-type activities are reported as internal transfers and then offset in the total column. Internal
activities between funds and activities for the year ended June 30, 2010 were as follows:
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Transfer In Transfer Out Amount Nature of Tnterfund Transfer
Geperal Fund Water Authority $ 132486 Debt senvice
General Fund Officer Training Fund 4,014 Court fines
General Fund Special Jait Fund 17990 Jail fecs
General Fund Court Credit Card Fusd 500008 Transfer of revenues
Officer Training Court Cradit Card Fund 50715 Transfer of revenues
Genera) Fund Water Authority 14030000  Transfer of revenues
Aninzal License Count Credit Card Fung 44 Transfer of revenues
2003 CIP Fund General Fund 13.442.992  Sales tax transfer
TIF Fund Gengral Fund 198,243 Sales tax ransfer
2008 CIP Fund General Fund 4.032.898  Sales fax transfer
Mass Teansit Fund General Fund 355,000  Operating subsidy
Runtiag and Fishing Fund General Fund 480,000  Operating subsidy
CIP Fund Generat Fund 139,046  Capital project
CTP Fund Emergency 911 7.000 Operating subsidy
2005 CIP Fund Waler Authority 2,602,548  Capital project
2005 CIP Fund Ad Valorem 2005 8,000,000 Capital project
2065 CIP Fund CIP 2000 3,186,376 Closing of fund
Ad Valorem 2005 Ad Valorem 454,666  Closing of fund
E911 Fund General Fund 1,208,347  Operating subsidy
RSVP Fund General Fund 61,498  Operating subsidy
2005 CIP Fund Water Aulharity 4919400  Debt proceeds drawn for capital projects
2005 CIP Fund Water Authority 291,601 Capital project
Water Authority C1P Fund 9.216.656  Operating subsidy
Water Authority 2005 CIP Fund 4383273 Debiservice
Water Authority Court Credit Card Fund 23,080  Transfer of revenues
Capital Outlay Rolling Stock Fund Water Authonity 2727037 Capital purchases
Water Authority General Fund 330.64%  Operating subsidy

Reconciliation to fund financial statements:

Govemmental Feads
Water Authorily
Totals

Reconciliation 1o Statement of Activities:

Net Transfers

Capital conlributions transferred fiom govemmental funds

Transfers - Taternal Activity

Transfers o Transfers from Net

Cther Funds Other Funds Transfers

S (46492987 § 62,115,281 § 15,622,594
(29,733,172) 14,130,378 {15,622,394)

S (76,245 959)

$ 76,245,939 3 R

k) 15,622,594
(7,044,592}
5 7.978.002

Activities of the discretely presented component units financed by the primary government are reported
as an expense of the primary government in the Statement of Changes in Net assets. Activity between
the primary government and discretely presented component units as of June 30, 2010 was as follows:
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Component Unit
Lawton Economic

Development Aunthority

Lawton Metropolitan Area

Airport Authority

Museum of the Great
Plains Trust Authority

Lawton Metropolitan
Planning Organization

Lawton Arts and
Humanities Council

6. Long-Term Debt

Amount

$205,499

49,500

575,000

(37,815)

2,130

$794,314

Purpose

Operating Subsidy

Capital purchase

Operating Subsidy

Grant

Operating Subsidy

The City’s long term debt consists of general obligation bonds, judgments, revenue bonds and notes,
capital lease obligations, accrued compensated absences, contracts payable, and landfill closure and post

closure,

For the year ended June 30, 2010, the City’s long-term debt balances changed as follows:

Primary Government:

Tyvpe of Deht

Governmental Activities:
General Obligation Bonds N
General Obligation Bond Premium
Judgments Pavable
Notes Payable
Capital Lease Obligations
Workers Comyp Liability
Accrued Compensated Absences

Total Governmental Activities 5

Business-Type Activities:
Notes Payable $
Revenue Bonds Payable
Revenue Bonds Premiuin
Contracts Payable
Accrued Compensated Absences
Workers Comp Liability
Landfill Closure and Post-closure

Total Business-Type Activitics S

Restated
Balance Balance Due Within
July 1, 2009 Additions Deductions June 30, 2018 One Year
24,770,600 - g 2,630,000 s 22,140,000 $ 2,490,000
116,351 - 9,696 106,655 B
1,008,901 691,280 495,825 1,204,356 530,681
2,006,000 - 135,000 1,865,000 58,000
339,864 238,445 339,864 238,445 118,771
917,864 273,445 - ©OL19E313 595,657
4,963,344 480,908 - 5,444,252 650,588
33,924,801 1,684,082 M 3,610,385 $ 32,190,021 S 4,443,697
60,293,694 36,158,053 S 4,486,700 8 91,965,047 S 4,073,624
4,425,000 - 1,405,000 3,020,000 1,475,000
160,277 - 80,138 80,139 -
16,564,102 - 529,105 16,034,997 547,428
703,127 17,117 - 780,244 93,240
613,869 169,086 - 782,955 782,955
6,034,914 355,492 - 6,390,406 6,390,406
88,794,983 36,759,748 S 6,500,943 $ 119,053,788 S 13,362,653
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General Obligation Bonds:

$15,580,000 general obligation bonds dated July 1, 2002, payable in annual installments

Governmental activities long-term debt payable from property tax levies or other governmental revenues
imcludes the following:

of $1,170,000, with interest rates of 3.75% to 6.0%, repaid by property tax levies $7,020,000
$4,000,000 general obligation bonds dated April 1, 2002, payable in annual installments
of $445,000, with interest rates of 3.5% to 4.0%, repaid by property iax levies 885,000
$1,500,000 general obligation bonds dated October 1, 2005, payable in annual installments
of $115,000, with an interest rate of 3%, repaid by property tax levies
General Obligation Bond Payable 1,155,000
Unamortized General Obligation Bond Premium 106.655
Total General Obligation Bond, Net 1,261,655
$2,500,000 general obligation bonds dated October 1, 2005, payable in annual installments
of $190,000, with an average interest rate of 3.59%, repaid by property tax levies 1,930,000
$3,000,000 general obligation bonds dated October 1, 2008, payable in annual installments
of $230,000, with an average interest rate of 4.22%, repaid by property tax levies 3,000,060
$8,000,000 general obligation bonds dated October 1, 2008, payable in annual installments
of $420.,000, with an average interest rate of 2.96%, repaid by property tax levies 8,000,000
$1,050,000 general obligation bonds dated June 1, 2003, payable in annual instaliments
of $150,000, with interest rates of 2.0% to 3.0%, repaid by property tax levies 150,000

Total general obligation bonds

Judgments Payable:

Court-assessed judgments to be paid with ad valorem taxes with periods ranging

$22,246,635

from one to three years, $1,204.356
Note Payable:
$2,000,000 note payable related to section 108 debt to be repaid with CDBG Fund

payable in varying installments with interest at 5% 31,865,000
Capital Lease Obligation:
$238,445 capital lease obligation for the purchase of a compactor, matures

November 30, 2012 with stated interest rate of 3.14% $238.445

Business-type activities long-term debt payable from net revenues generated by and taxes pledged to the
City’s business-type activities include the following:
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Note Payable:

Series 2001 A for $2,008,570 and Series 2001B for $3.445,000 with interest on Series 2001B
subject to annual adjustment (1,82% at June 30, 2007), and no interest charged on Series 2001A;
however, there is a .5% annual administrative fee. Debt service payments are due February 15
and August 15 through February, 2021. Both notes are secured by the revenues of the Lawton
Water Authority’s (the “Authority”) water, sanitary, and garbage collection and disposal systems.  $3,599,713

Series 2003 A for $1,819,430, Series 2003B for $3,095,000, Series 2003C for $1,020,000 and
Series D for $1,745,000 with interest on Series 2003B and 2003D ranging from 1.345% to
5.245%. No interest is charged on Series 2003 Aand 2003C; however, there is a .5% annual
administrative fee. Debt service payments are due March 15 and September 15 through
September, 2027. All notes are secured by the revenues of the Authority’s water, sanitary,
and garbage collection and disposal systems. 5,770,145

Series 2004 A for $1,310,000 and Series 2004B for $2,215,000, with interest charged on Series
2004B ranging from 1.145% to 4.795%. No interest is charged on Series 2004 A; however,
there is a .5% annual administrative fee. Debt service payments are due March 15 and
September 15 through September, 2028, Both notes are secured by the revenues of the
Authority’s water, sewer, and garbage collection and disposal systems, 2,766,925

Series 2005 for $10,815,000 with interest rate of 2.6% and .5% annual administrative fee,
Debt service paymenis are due March 5 and September 15 through September 15, 2026,
Secured by revenues of the Authority’s water, sewer, and garbage collection and disposal
systems, 6,607,373

Series 2006 A SRT for $33,653,600 with interest rate of 3.05% and .5% annual administrative fee.
Debt service payments are due March 15 and September 15 through September 15, 2026.
Secured by revenues of the Authority’s water, sewer, and garbage collection and disposal
Systers. 29,952 647

Series 2008 Energy Conservation Measurers Note for $2,375,000 with interest rate 4.357%
Debt service payments are due June 1 and December | through June 1, 2024,
Secured by revenunes of the Authority’s water, sewer, and garbage collection and disposal
sysiems. 2,315,000

Series 2008 SRF for $10,845,000 with interest rate of 3.08% and .5% annual administrative fee,
Debt service payments are due March 15 and September 15 through September 15, 2024,
Secured by revenues of the Authority’s water, sewer, and garbage collection and disposal
systems. At June 30, 2010 $10,546,124 had been drawn on the note. 10,546,124

Series 2009 Clean Water SRF for $12,270,000 with interest rate of 2.26% and .5% annual
administrative fee. Debt service payments are due March 15 and September 15 through
September 15, 2030. Secured by revenues of the Authority’s water, sewer, and garbage
collection and disposal systems. At June 30, 2010 only $2,209,567 had been drawn on
the note. 1,397,354

Series 2009 Drinking Water SRF for $4,725,000 with interest rate of 2.64% and .5% annual
administrative fee. Debt service payments are due March 15 and September 15 through
September 15, 2030. Secured by revenues of the Authority’s water, sewer, and garbage
collection and disposal systems. At June 30, 2010 only $1,777,601 had been drawn on
the note. 1,009,764
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$28,000,000 Note Payable under the BRAC Program with interest rate of 5.20%. Debt
service payments are due June and December interest only. Final principal and interest
paymet due June 30, 2015, Secured by sales tax. 28.000.000

Total Notes Payable

Revenue Bonds Payable:

$9,590,000 revenue bond issue of 2004, with average variable interest at 4.0%, used to construct
and improve water and wastewater infrastructure to be repaid by sales tax revenue.
Debt service payments are due January 1 and July I through Janvary 1, 2012,

Revenue Bond Payable 3,020,000
Unamortized Revenue Bond Premiom 80,139
Total Revenue Bonds, Net $3.100,139

Contract Pavable:

$20,634,941 contract payable with the Waurika Project Master Conservancy District. The
contract provides the City with share of the District’s water supply and the City pays its share
of the costs of the facilities and its operations to the District. The City has pledged water revenues
to secure this obligation and also has the ability to levy property taxes to pay the obligation.
Debt principal payments are due annually, with interest at 3.46% (subject to adjustinent) $1

Long-term debt service requirements to maturity are as follows:

Governmental-Type Activities

G.C). Bonds Payable Note Payable Judgments Payable Capilal Leases
Year Ending June 30, Principai Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal [nterest

2011 5 2,490,000 S 1,167,038 5 58,000 S 59,268 5 330,081 5 68,480 S 118,773 S 4,878

20612 2,565,000 745,519 66,000 87,334 361,260 54,689 119,674 3775

2013 2,125,000 654,434 64,000 85,080 312,415 57,204 - -

2014 2,125,000 37,238 67,000 82,517 - - -

2015 2,125,000 484,178 12,000 79,687 - - - .
2016-2020 5,980,000 1,418,799 422,000 345,791 - - - -
2021-2025 3,630,000 601,505 555,000 227,098 - - - -
2026-2030 1,700,000 147,642 567,000 63,160 - - - -

Total $ 22,140,000 S 5,789,953 S 1,865,000 $1,029,935 S 1,204,356 5 180,373 5 238,445 S 8,653
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Business-Type Activities

Notes Payable Revenue Bonds Payable Contract Payable
Year Ending June 30, Principal Tnierest Principal Interest Principal Tnlerest
201t § 4,073,624 S 3507095 S 1,475,000 S 151,000 ) 547,428 s 555,292
2012 4,835,300 3,785,877 1,545,000 77,250 566,385 536,335
2013 4,575,000 3,656,598 . - 585,999 516,721
2014 4,620,300 3,524,880 - - 606,293 496,427
2015 32,569,800 3,262,490 - - 627,288 475,432
2016-2020 24,216,09% 7,877,477 - - 3,471,728 2,035,872
2021-2025 22,664,589 3,565,832 - - 4,123,073 1,396,527
2026-2030 10,735,790 765,835 - - 4,542,333 637,127
2031 524,875 5,025 - - 958,470 32,870
Total $108,815,877 S 30,051,409 S 3,020,000 S 228,250 S 16,034,997 S 6,676,603
Less remaining
proceeds te be drawn (16,85{0,832)
Principal balance 5 91,965,045

Pledge of Future Revenues

Utifity Net Revenues Pledge - The City has pledged net utility revenues to repay the 32,008,570,
$3,445,000, $1,819,430, $3,095,000, $1,020,000, $1,745,000, §1,310,000, $2,215,000, $10,815,000,
$33,653,600, $10,845,000, $4,725,000 and $12,270,000 of the OWRB Series 20014, 2001B, 2003A,
2003B, 2003C, 2003D, 2004A, 2004B, 2005, 2006A, 2008 SRF, 2009 CWSRF and 2009 DWSRF
promissory notes payable, respectively. Proceeds from the notes provided financing for capital assets. The
notes are payable from net utility revenues and are payable through 2021, 2021, 2027, 2027, 2027, 2027,
2028, 2028, 2026, 2026, 2025, 2030 and 2030 respectively. The total principal and interest payable for the
remainder of the life of these notes is $100,666,938. Net utility revenues received in the current year were
$22,458,806. Debt service payments of $6,140,073 for the cwirent fiscal year were 27.3% of pledged net
utility revenues.

Landfill Closure Liability

State and federal laws and regulations require the City to place a final cover on its construction and
demolition fandfill site when it stops accepting waste and to perform certain maintenance and monitoring
functions at the site for eight years after closure. Although closure and post-closure care costs will be
paid only near or after the date that the landfill stops accepting waste, the City reports a portion of these
costs as an operating expense of the Utilitics Authority in each fiscal year. The current period expense
amount is based upon the amount of landfill capacity used as of each fiscal year end.
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The $6,390,406 reported as accrued landfill closure cost liability at June 30, 2010, represents the
camulative amount of such costs reported to date based on the use of 95% of the estimated capacity of
the landfill. The Authority will recognize the remaining estimated costs of closure and post-closure care
in the amount of $284,404 as the remaining estimated capacity is filled. These amounts are based on
what it would cost to perform alt closure and post-closure care in 2010. The City has $753,726 set aside
to fund the estimated landfill closure cost lability. At June 30, 2010, the landfill had a remaining
estimated useful life of approximately half a year.

During FY 2010, cells four and five were constructed adding approximately 1.1 million tons of capacity
to the landfill and extending the landfill’s life to approximately eight years. At June 30, 2010, the new
cells were not available for use and are not included in the calculations above. DEQ permit for use did
not begin until December 2010,

7. Net Assets and Fund Balances
Net assets are displayed in three components:

a.  Iwvested in capital assets, net of related debr - Consists of capital assets including restricted
capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and reduced by the outstanding balances of any bonds,
mortgages, notes, or other borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or
tmprovements of those assets.

b.  Restricted net assets - Consists of net assets with constraints placed on the use either by 1)
external groups such as creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws and regulations of other governments,

or 2} law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

C. Unrestricted net assets - All other net assets that do not meet the definition of “restricted” or
“invested in capital assets, net of related debt.”

It is the City’s policy to first use restricted net assets prior to the use of unrestricted net assets when an
expense is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted net assets are available.

Beginning net assets were restated as follows:

Business-type
Activities/Proprietary

Funds
Statement of Activities:
Beginning net assets as previously reported $91,024,848
Add: Understatement of capital assets 4,209,301
Excluded fund
Less: Understatement of accumulated depreciation (2,1 14)
Beginning net assets, restated $95,232,035
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8. Revenues

Program Revenues:

Revenues that are derived directly from each activity or from parties outside of the City’s taxpayers are
reported as program revenues within the Statement of Activities. The City has the following program
reveiues in each activity:

e Public Safety — Fire, Police, Ambulance — ambulance fees, fire run charges, officer’s
training charges for services, police sentinel charges for services, restricted operating
grants, 911 revenue, and restricted capital grants,

e Streets — Commercial vehicle and gasoline excise tax shared by the State.

e Culture and recreation — lake fees, pool fees, library fees, hunting and fishing permits,
softball fees, and operating grants.

¢ Transportation — bus fees and operating grants,

o General Government — license and permits, fines and forfeitures, cemetery revenue,
impact fees, operating grants and capital grants.

All other govermmental revenues are reported as general. All taxes are classified as general revenue
even if restricted for a specific purpose.

Sales Tax Revenue:

Sales tax revenue represents a 4.125 cents tax on each dollar of taxable sales which is collected by the
Oklahoma Tax Commission and remitted to the City. Sales tax revenue is recorded as follows:

Initially 3.25 cents is recorded in the General Fund. Then two-thirds of 1.25 cents is transferred to the
2000 CIP Fund and one-third of 1.25 cents is transferred to the 2005 CIP Fund for specific capital
projects approved by voters. Beginning January 2008, the voters approved an additional 0.375 cent tax
for capital improvements transferred to the 2008 Sales Tax Capital Improvement Fund. If needed, the
2005 CIP and 2000 CH Funds transfer a portion of the dedicated sales taxes to the Water Authority for
debt service on voter-approved projects as well. Beginning in January 2010, the voters approved an
additional 0.50 cent tax for the Lawton Public School District. The money is deposited into the LPS
Sales Tax Fund and transferred to the School District the same month, The tax is restricted for
construction, renovation, remodeling, and school buses.

Property Tax Revenue:

In accordance with state law, a municipality may only levy a property tax to retire general obligation
debt approved by the voters and to pay judgments rendered against the City. The City’s property taxes
are billed and collected by the County and remitted to the City. Property taxes levied by the City are
billed and collected by the County Treasurer's Office and remitted to the City in the month following
collection. Property taxes are levied normally in October and are due in equal installments on
December 31 and March 31. Property taxes unpaid for the fiscal year are attached by an enforceable
lien on property in the following October. For the year ended June 30, 2010, the City's net assessed
valuation of taxable property was $430,151,588. The taxes levied by the City per $1,000 of net
assessed valuation for the year ended June 30, 2010 was $9.07.
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9. Risk Management

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, or destruction of assets;
errors and omissions; injuries to employees; employee health and life; and natural disasters. The City
manages these various risks of loss as follows:

General Liability — Covered through self-insurance.
Physical Property — Covered through purchased insurance with a $35,000 deductible.

*  Workers® Compensation — Workers® compensation is covered through self-insurance
using a third party processor to process claims.

* Employee’s Group Medical —Covered through self-insurance using a third party.
processor to process medical claims. The City uses the third party processor’s
estimates to record group insurance claims payable. The City also has a stop-loss
policy which covers individual ¢laims in excess of $150,000 during any year.

Management believes the insurance coverage listed above is sufficient to preclude any significant
uninsured losses to the City, Settled claims have not exceeded this insurance coverage in any of the
past three fiscal years.

10. Retirement Plan Participation
The City of Lawton participates in three pension or retirement plans:

1. Lawton City Employee Retirement System (the “System™) — single-employer, defined benefit
pension plan

2. Oklahoma Police Pension and Retirement Systein (OPPRS) - a statewide cost-sharing plan

3. Oklahoma Firefighter’s Pension and Retirement System (OFPRS) — a statewide cost-sharing plan

Lawton City Emplovee Retirement System

The City contributes to the City of Lawton Employee Retirement System (the "System"), which is a single employer
defined benetit pension plan administered by the City of Lawton. After November 1, 19735, all regular, full-time
employees become a participant after completing thirty days of creditable service except for full-time police officers,
firefighters and the city manager. The funding policy is established by Ordinance No. 692. Therefore, contributions
are determined by ordinance rather than by actuarial determination. Each year, employees contribute 5,3% of annual
pre-tax wages and the City contributes an amount required to provide benefits under the retivement system, subject to
a maximum of 8% of annual pre-tax gross wages. The City performs actuarial valuations in each odd-numbered year
to determine if the City’s fixed contribution rate is funding the actuarially determined liability. The System issues
separate audited annual financial statements which can be obtained by contacting the City of Lawton.

The following is a summary of funding policies, contribution methods, and benefit provisions:
Year established and governing authority 1970; City Ordinance No. 692

Determination of Contribution City Ordinance
requirements

58



CITY OF LAWTON, OKLAHOMA
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT
As of and for the Year Ended June 34, 2010

Employer 9% maximum

Plan members 5.3%
Funding of administrative costs Investment earnings
Period required to vest Based on years of service; 100% vested after {0 years
Eligibility for distribution Age 52 with 10 years credited service, or earlier with 25

years credited service
Provisions for:

Disability benefits Yes
Death benefits Yes

Plan Membership {as of July 1, 2009):

Active members 541
Retired participants 134
Disabled participants 15
Beneficiaries 33

Total 23

B. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Plan Asset Matters

Basis of Accounting - Disclosures of the System's financial condition are prepared using the accrual basis of
accounting. Employee and employer contributions are recognized as System revenues in the period in which they
are due to the plan per the plan agreement. Benefits and refunds are recognized when due and payable per plan
provisions. The entire expense of the Plan administration is charged against the earnings of the Plan.

Method Used to Value Investments - Values of the System’s assets are reported at fair value which approximates
market. Investments in judgments are valued at original judgment value, less principal collected since no quoted
market price is available, Purchases and sales of securities are recorded on a trade date basis, while interest
income is recorded on the accrual basis. As of June 30, 2010, the System held no related party investments or
individual investments (other than 1.8, government and U.S. government guaranteed securities) whose market
value exceeds five percent or more of the net assets available for benefits.

C. dnnual Pension Cost, Net Pension Obligation, and Reserves
Current year annual pension costs for the System is shown in the trend information provided in the Trend
Information section. Annual required contributions were made by the plan. There were increases to net pension
benelfit obligation for the year ended June 30, 2010, See further explanation in paragraph D below.
There are no assets legally reserved for purposes other than the payment of plan member benefits. There are no

long-term contracts for contributions.

D. Actuarial Assumptions

For the City Employees Retirement Plan, the actuarial assumptions used are as follows:

Valuation date July 1, 2009
Actuarial cost method Entry age normal
Amortization method Level dollar
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Remaining amortization pertod
Asset valuation method

30 years rolling
Market value

Investment rate of return 6.75%
Projected salary increases 4.25%
E. Trend Information
Annual Actual Percentage Net

Fiscal Pension Employer of APC Pension
Year Cost (APC) Contribution Contributed Obligation
2008 § 2,349,656 $ 1,553,635 65.4% § 3,609,940
2009 2,341,958 1,628,972 68.5% 4,322,926
2010 2,341,958 1,703,544 72.7% 4,973,264

F. Schedule of Funding Progress

As of July 1, 2009, the funded status of the City Employee Retirement System single employer defined

benefit plan is as follows:

Actuarial accrued liability (AAL)

Actuarial value of plan assets

Unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL)
Funded ratio (actuarial value of plan assets/AAL)
Annual covered payroli (active plan members)
UAAL as a percentage of covered payroll

$60,084,860
37,963,510
$(22,121,350)
63.2%
19,845,649
111.5%

The schedule of funding progress, presented as required supplementary information following the notes
to the financial statements, presents multi-year trend information about whether the actuarial value of
plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liabilities for benefits.
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Olkdlahoma Firefighter's and Police Pension and Retirement Systents

The City of Lawton, as the employer, participates in two statewide cost-sharing multiple employer
defined benefit plans on behalf of the firefighters and police officers. The systems are funded by
contributions from participants, employers, insurance premium taxes, and state appropriations, as
necessary.

Obtaining separately issued
financial statements

Eligibility 1o participate

Authosity establishing
contribution obligations and
benefits

Employee’s contribution rate
{percent of covered paytoll)

City’s conlribution rate
(percent of covered payroll)

State obligation

Period required to vest

Eligibitity and benefits for
distribution {full-time)

Eligibility and benefits for
distribution {(velunteer)

Deferred retirement option

Provisions for:
Cost of living adjustmicnts
(normal retirement)

Death (duty, non-duty, post
retirerment)

Disability (duty, non-duty)

Cost of living allowances

(Hklahoma Police Pension and
Retirement System

(Ylahoma Firefighter's Pension and
Retirement Syvstem

Police Pensior and Retirement
1001 N, 63rd St., Suite 605
Oklahoma Cily, OK 731106-7335

All fall-time officers, employed by a
participating municipality, not less
than 21 years of age or mere than 45
years afage when hired

State Statute

3%

State appropriation to fund the
unfiznded actuardal acerued liability

10 years

20 years credited service, 2 1224 of
fina} average salary multiplied by the
years ef eredited service with a
maximum of 30 years considered; if
vested, at or aller age 50, or affer 10

but before 2¢ years of credited
service, with reduced benefits.

Yes, 20 years credited service with
additional option to participate in
ouisiana Plan,

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes
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Oklahoma Firefighter's Pension and
Retirement System

4545 N. Lincoln Blvd., Suite 265
Oklahoma City, OK 73105-3414

All fizll-time or voluntary firefighters
of a participating municipality hired
before age 45.

State Statute

State appropriation to fund the
unfiunded actuarial accrued lability

0 years

20 years credited service 2 2% of
final average salary multiplied by the
years of crediled service with a
maximum of 30 years considered; if’
vested, at or after age 50, or afler 10
but before 20 years of credited
service, with reduced benefits.

20 years eredited service equal 1o
$5.46 per month per year ol service,
with a maximum of 30 years
considered.

Yes, 20 years credited service with

continued serviee for a maximum of
30 or mote years,

Yes. if vested by 5/83

Yes

Yes

Yes
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Retirement Plan Contributions — OFPRS and OPPRS Cost-Sharing Plans

Oklahoma Police Oklahoma Firefighter's Pension
Pension and Retirement System and Retirement System
Fiscal Required Percentage Fiscal Required Percentage
Year Contribution  Contributed Year Contribution Contributed
2008 1,055,258 100% 2008 883,763 100%
2009 1,057,088 100% 2009 882,754 100%
2010 1,104,949 100% 2010 947,662 100%

Other Post-Employment Benefits

Plan Description. The City sponsors medical and prescription drug insurance to qualifying retirees and
their dependents. Coverage is provided through fully-insured arrangements that collectively operate as a
substantive single-employer defined benefit plan. The plan does not issue separate financial statements.
Qualifying retirees are those employees who are eligible for immediate disability or retirement benefits
under the Oklahoma Police Pension and Retirement System, Oklahoma Firefighter's Pension and
Retirement System, or the City of Lawton Employee Retirement Plan. Retirees may continue coverage
with the City by paying the carrier premium rate. Coverage is available for cach of the lifetimes of
retirees and their spouses. Authority to establish and amend benefit provisions rest with the city council.
Benefits are paid from general operating assets of the City.

Funding Policy. The contribution requirements of plan members and the City are established by the City
Council. Annual health insurance premium amounts are established by the city council. The required
contribution is based on projected pay-as-you-go financing requirements. For fiscal year 2010, the
actuarially expected City contribution in the form of net age adjustiment was $611,016 to the Plan. Plan
members receiving benefits contributed $193,527 of the total premiums, through their payment of the full
determined premium in fiscal year 2010.

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation. The City's annual other postemployment benefit (OPEB)
cost (expense) is calculated based on the annual required contribution of the employer (ARC), an amount
actuarially determined in accordance with the parameters of GASB Statement 45, Accounting and
Financial Reporting by Employers for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions. The ARC
represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal cost each year
and amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) over a period of thirty years. The
following table shows the components of the City's annual OPEB cost tie amount actually contributed to
the plan, and changes in the City's net OPEB obligation for the year ended June 30, 2010:

Normal Cost $ 709,692
Amortization of Actuarial Accrued Liablity (AAL) 565,551
Annual OPEB cost (expense) 1,275,243
Expected net benefits during the year (611,016)
Increase in net OPEB obligation 664,227
Net OPEB obligation - beginning of year 664,227
Net OPEB obligation - end of year S 1,328,454

62



CITY OF LAWTON, OKLAHOMA
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT
As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2010

The City's annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the plan, and the net
OPEB obligation were as follows:
Percentage of

Annual OPEB Annual OPEB Net OPEB

Fiscal Year Cost Cost Contributed Obligation
6/30/09 $1,275,234 47.9% $664,227
6/30/10 $1,275,234 47.9% $1,328,454

Information for June 30, 2008, was not available as fiscal year 2009 was the first year the City was
required to have an actuary performed and report any liability.

Funded Status and Funding Progress. As of July 1, 2008, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the
Plan was not funded. The actuarial accrued liability (AAL) for benefits was $15,764,535, and the
actuarial value of assets was zero, resulting in an unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) of
$15,764,535. The covered payroll (annual payroll of active employees covered by the plan) was
$30,904,366, and the ratio of the UAAL to the covered payroll was 51 percent. Because the plan is a
substantive plan there are no plan assets.

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and
assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples inciude
assumptions about future employment, mortality, and the healthcare cost trend. Amounts determined
regarding the funded status of the plan and the annual required contributions of the employer are subject
to contimual revision as actual results are compared with past expectations and new estimates are made
about the future. The schedule of funding progress, presented as required supplementary information
following the notes to the financial statements, presents multiyear trend information about whether the
actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued
liabilities for benefits.

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions. Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on
the substantive plan (the plan as understood by the employer and the plan members) and inchude the
types of benefits provided at the time of each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit
costs between the employer and plan members to that point. The actuarial methods and assumptions used
include techniques that are designed to reduce the effects of short-term volatility in actuarial accrued
liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, consistent with the long-term perspective of the calculations.

In the July 1, 2008, actuarial valuation, the Projected Unit Credit actuarial cost method was used. The
actuartal assumptions inchuded a 4.5 percent investment rate of return (net of administrative expenses),
which is a blended rate of the expected long-term investment returns on plan assets and on the employer's
own investiments calculated based on the funded level of the Plan at the valuation date, and an annual
healthcare cost trend rate of 7 percent initially, reduced by decrements to an ultimate rate of 5 percent in
2013. The UAAL is being amortized over 30 years based on a level percent-of-pay open-period basis.
The remaining amortization period at July 1, 2008, was thirty years. As of the date of this valuation,
there are no plan assets, Retiree preminms are paid as they come due from general operating assets of the
City,
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11. Commitments and Contingencies

Construction Contracts Outstanding
The following construction contracts were outstanding at June 30, 2010:

2nd Street Enhancement Project $ 1,151,376
Rogers Ln /144 1,103,270
Nine Mile Creek Sewer Line 2,855,343
Downtown Preservation 2,900,233
NW 38th (Cache - Gore) 4,007,360
WWTP limpr WK Pkg 4,450,214

Litigation

The City is a party to various legal proceedings which normally occur in the course of governmental
operations. The financial statements do not include accruals or provisions for loss contingencies that
may result from these proceedings. State statutes provide for the levy of an ad valorem tax over a
three-year period by a City Sinking Fund for the payment of any court assessed judgment rendered
against the City. While the outcome of the above noted proceedings cannot be predicted, due to the
msurance coverage maintained by the City and the State statute relating to judgments, the City feels
that any settlement or judgment not covered by insurance would not have a material adverse effect on
the financial condition of the City.

Grant Programs

The City of Lawton participates in various federal or state grant/loan programs from year to year. In
2010, the City’s involvement in federal and state award programs is relatively material, The grant/loan
programs are often subject to additional audits by agents of the granting or loaning agency, the purpose
of which is to ensure compliance with the specific conditions of the grant or loan, The City has not
been notified of any noncompliance with federal or state award requirements. Any lability for
reimbursement which may arise as a result of these audits cannot be reasonably determined at this time,
although it is believed the amount, if any, would not be material.

12. New Accounting Pronouncements

The GASB has issued Statement Number 54, “Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type
Definitions.” This Statement establishes new categories for reporting fund balance and revises the
definitions for governmental fund types. The requirements of this Statement are effective for fiscal
year 2011,

13. Material NonCompliance

In the General Fund, the City had expenditures exceeding appropriations at the legal level of control in
the following departiments and for the following amounts:

General Fund - Public Safety - $27,436
General Fund — Transfers to Other Funds — $1,542,711
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
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Budygetary Comparison Schedules (Budgetary Basis) — Year Ended June 30, 2010

Beginning Budgetary Fund Balance:
Resources (Inflows):
Taxes and assessments
Fees, licenses and penmits
Rentals and sales of property
Fines and forfeitures
Interest earned
Other sources
Intergovernmental
Grants

Total Resources (Inflows)

Amounts available for appropriation
Charges to Appropriations (Ouatflows):

General Government
Public Safety
Streets
Culture and Recreation
‘Fotal Charges to Appropriations

Other financing sources (uses)
Prior year obligation expense
Transfers from other funds
Transfers to other funds
Total other financing sources (uses)

Ending Budgetary Fund Balance

GENERAL FUND
_ Actual Variance with
Budgeted Amounts Amounts Final Budget
Original Final {Budget basis) Paositive (Nepative)
¥ 445,373 $ 445,373 $ 3,328,724 $ 2,883,351
45,834,810 45,834,810 45,933 356 98,546
1,259,169 1,259,169 1,203,786 (55,383)
194,000 194,600 77,336 (116,664)
2,708,376 2,708,376 2,952,651 244,275
350,000 350,000 136,542 (213,458)
465,143 465,143 595,887 130,744
860,000 860,000 834,667 (25,333)
250,600 250,000 120,243 (129,757)
51,921,498 51,921,498 51,854,468 (67,030)
52,366,871 52,366,871 55,183,192 2,816,321
8,301,503 8,301,503 7,100,102 1,195,401
25,543,571 25,543,571 25,571,007 (27,436)
7,235,054 7,235,054 6,931,744 303,310
5,479,997 5,479,997 5,305,507 174,490
46,560,125 46,560,125 44,914,360 1,645,765
- - 59.873 59,873
12,915,743 12,915,743 19,234,801 6,319,058
(21,257,507} {21,257,507) {22,800,218) {1,542,71})
(8,341.764) (8,341,764} (3,505,544} 4,836,220
§ (2,535018) $  (2,535,018) $ 6,763,288 $ 9,298,306
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Footnotes to Budgetary Comparison Schedule:

1. The budgetary comparison schedules and budgetary fund balance amounts are reported on a non-
GAAP basis that report revenues on a cash basis, and expenditures in the period the invoice is received,
except for payroll expenditures that are recorded when paid. In addition, obligations that are required
to be funded from ending budgetary fund balances are subtracted from total ending budgetary fund
balances to arrive at the unreserved budgetary fund balance. This presentation of unreserved fund
balances on a budgetary basis is used to demonstrate compliance with Article 10, § 26 of the Oklahoma
State Constitution.

2. The legal level of appropriation control is the department level within a fund. Transfers of
appropriation within a fund require the approval of the City Manager. All supplemental appropriations
require the approval of the City Council. Supplemental appropriations must be filed with the Office of
the State Auditor and Inspector.

3. The budgetary basis differs from the modified accrual (GAAP) basis as shown in the schedule
below:

Fund Batance Net Change in Fund Balance
June 30, 2009 Fund Balance June 30, 2010
Budget to GAAP Reconciliation:
Fund Balance « GAAT Basis S §,171,465 S 4,194,834 S 12,366,299
Increases (Decreases):
Revenues:
Taxes receivable {6,722,702) (1,043,154 {1,765,856)
Accourts receivable {34,967) 27,518 {7,452)
Accrued interest (12,681 (2,765) (15,446)
Fair value adjustment 1,132 (1,132} -
Expenditures:
Accrued payroll 1,343,309 283,835 1,627,144
Encumbrances (145,755) (96,259) (242,044)
Other expenditures 728,923 71,720 §00,643
Fund Balance - Budgetary Basis S 3,328,724 5 3,434,504 S 6,763,288

4. In the General Fund, the City had expenditures exceeding appropriations at the legal level of
control in the following departments and for the following amounts:

General Fund — Public Works and Streets - $229,065
General Fund — Transfers to Other Funds — §1,542,711
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Schedule of Funding Progress — City Employee Retirement System

VAAL asa

Actuarial Actaarial Accrued Unfunded Peroentage

Actuariat Value of Liability (AAL} AAL Funded Covered of Covered
Valaation Assets Entry Age {UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payrolt

Date {a) (b (a-b) (arb) (<) b - apc)

July 1, 2009 37,963,510 60,084,860 EAN (22,121,350} 63.2% 19,845,049 111.5%

July 1, 2007 16,850,006 53,258,078 TAN (16,408,072) 69.2% 18,344,200 86.4%

July 1, 2007 36,850,006 49,038,912 PUC {12,188,906) 75.1% 18,344,200 66.4%

July I, 2005 38,405,760 47,101,375 PUC (8,695,613) 81.5% 15,889,024 54.7%

fualy 1, 2003 34,278,831 38,738,865 PUC (4,460,034) $8.5% £4,583,355 30.6%

July 1, 2061 30,861,366 37,391,605 PUC (6,530,239) 82.5% 14,627 470 44.6%

Note:

Prior to 7/1/2007 the actuarial accrued liability was reported using the Projected Unit Credit cost method (PUC)

Paragraph 37 of GASB 25 requires thai the acloariat cost method used for funding the plan (which is the Entry

Age Normal cost method EAN) can be used for this purpase.

For the 7/1/2007 valuation both costs methods are shown; the sccond Tine (EAN) i the efticial value (the PUC

value is only shown for comparative purposes)

The unfunded actuarial accrued liability was affected by the following new actuarial assumptions:

Decrease in discount rate from 7.5% to 6.75% in 2009.
conservative asset valuation of the plan.

Actual Employer Percentage
Fiscal Required Contribution of APC

Year per Retirement Plan Contributed
2005 § 1,189,519 100.0%
2006 1,259,042 100.0%
2007 1,412,087 100.0%
2008 1,553,635 65.4%
2009 1,628,972 68.5%
2010 1,703,544 72.7%
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Schedule of Funding Progress — Other Post Employment Benefits

The funded status and funding progress of the City’s defined benefit OPEB plan for the most recent

actuarial valuations is as follows:

July 1, 2008

Actuarial acerued liability - AAL (a)
Actuarial value of plan assets (b)
Unfunded actuarial accrued liability —

$15,764,535

UAAL (funding excess) {a} — (b) 815,764,535
Funded ratio (b)/(a) 0%
Covered payroll (c) $30,904,366
UAAL (funding excess) as a % of covered 519%

payrolt [UAAL/(¢)]

Three year trend information is not available,
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OTHER SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
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Schedule of Changes in Fund Balances - Non-Major Governmental Funds, Year Ended June 30, 2010

Fund Changes in Fund
Balance Fund Balance
Fund 77172008 Balance 6302010
Special Revenue Funds:
Real Property Proceeds S 2275 S -8 2,275
RSVP (9.933) 2,409 (1.324)
Public Library 9311 369 6.880
Small Business Loan 163,004 244 163,248
CDBG 1,885,537 (1,012,300 873,237
HOME lavestmens CDBG (9,632) 26,327 16,675
Lawton Urkan Housing 234 - 234
Police Gram 13,845 (4,154) 5.691
Park Fee Fund 93,031 15,708 104,731
Hunting & Fishing Permits 9,543 {63,623) (54,082)
Narcotics Fund 37573 (9.868) 27,675
Animal Sterilization Fund 180,643 21,016 201,659
Insurance Proceeds 42,125 15,642 53,7607
Emergency 911 59,360 (244,353) (184,593)
Adult Sofiball 36,250 2,104 38,360
Cemetery Care 192,610 16,606 208,216
Officers Training 81,702 15,863 98,567
Court Credit Card Maintenance 456,145 £,543 457,688
Lawton Parking Authority £,19] - 1,191
Senior Crafts Fund 85 - 86
Animal License Fund 281,597 42,350 323,847
Elmer Thomas Park 7,796 - 7.796
State Landfill Fund 113,548 {28,949) 84,599
Police Seatinel 1,167 242 1,409
Fire Prevension Education 1,905 i59 8.004
Fark Fund 2,609 - 2,609
MeMahon Authority Grants 23915 - 23,915
Drainage Maintenance Fund 539,998 113,981 653,979
Animal Ponation Fund 9,923 1,798 11,721
Application Fees Fund 19,053 5,634 24,687
Capital Outlay Rolling Stock 2,288,308 (794,477) 1,493,831
LETA Beautification - 31435 3435
Cemetery Reward 5,500 - 5,500
Centennial Fund 6,851 225 7,076
Hotel'Motel Tax Fund 470,622 (374,195) 906,427
Project Empact 29,177 - 29,477
Recyleing Fund 5,952 8,194 14,146
Mass Transit Fuad 118,762 15,493 154,255
Reserve Fund 426,129 1,093,491 1,519,620
Federal Grant Fuad 210,962 1,007,443 1,218,405
Special Jail Fund 26,876 6,440 13310
Cellular Service Fee Fund 396,479 {350,111) 546,368
Stormwater Mitigation 207.969 58,933 266,902
Police and Fire Training Fund 176,085 30,895 206,980
Ipact Fees 1,541,688 426,926 1968614
Capital Project:
cIp 377,230 546,765 924,004
CIP 1995 554,719 {534,719} -
CIP Sales Tax 2008 4,036,686 (3,608,530) 428,156
CIP 2000 3,195,559 (3,195,559 -
Debt Service
Prior 10 1972 786,148 £69.003 1,679,151
Ad Vatorem 2003 10,261 537 (8.098.383) 2,163,154
Total S 20871645 % (13947821) S 15923824

The General Fund and 2005 CIP Fund are considered major funds and are therefore displayed in
separate columns. All other governmental funds are considered non-major funds and are aggregated
under the column Other Governmental Funds. The fund balances are reported on the modified accrual
basis for these aggregated non-major funds.
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Debt Service Coverage Schedule - Year Ended June 30, 2010

DEBT SERVICE COYERAGE: OWRB Series
2001A, 2001B, 2003A, 2003B,
2003C, 2003D, 2004A, 2004B
2005, 20064, 2008 & 2609
Promissory Notes

GROSS REVENUE AVAILABLE:

Charges for services (all utility revenues) $41,142,292

Investment income 44,598

Total Gross Revenue Available 41,186,890
OPERATING EXPENSES:

Total Operating Expenses 18,728,084

Net Revenue Available for Debt Service $22,458,806

Maximum Annual Debt Service on all Obligations Payable From

Revenues of the System $7,766,323
Computed Coverage 289%
Coverage Requirement 125%
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